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The Singer brand has been with the Thai society for
more than 116 years. This would not be possible if 154
years ago there had not been a man named Isaac Merritt
Singer, the man who revolutionized the global garment
industry by inventing the world’s first sewing machine in
USA. After his invention, high-quality sewing machines
under the brand “Singer” have become widely popular

throughout the world, including in Thailand.

The beginning of Singer dated back in 1851, when
Mr. Isaac Merritt Singer revolutionized the world’s garment
industry by inventing the world’s first sewing machine in a
small machine shop in Boston, USA within the period of 11
days and borrowed investment money of 40 US dollars. Two
years later, the first Singer sewing machine was sold for
100 US dollars, and received a winning prize from the
World Fair in Paris, France. After that, Singer devoted all his
time to inventing sewing machines until the “Singer”

symbol became a globally popular trademark.
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“Singer” products became known by the Thai people
ever since the reign of King Rama IV, when Anna the
Leonowens brought in a Singer sewing machine to give to
the Siamese Royal Household. After that females in the
Household began to wear garments that were made using
the Singer sewing machine. Since then, the “Singer”

trademark has been Siamese’ favorite until now.

In 1889, Kiam Hua Heng Company Limited was
appointed by the parent company in USA as the distributor
of Singer sewing machines in then Siam. Later the
company changed its
name to Singer Sewing
Machine Company
Limited and operated

as a branch of the

parent company in USA.
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With a continuous development, in 1957 Singer
expanded its business from distributing sewing machines,
which already gained popularity, to offering a greater
variety of electrical appliances, starting from the
introduction of Singer refrigerators into the market, followed
by television sets, radios, gas stoves, washing machines,
video cassette players, and various kinds of audio
equipment, so that Singer’s quality products can cover all

the needs of consumers in every household.

To become the leader in distributing electrical
appliances under the installment plan system, Singer
Sewing Machine Company Limited changed its name to
Singer Thailand Company Limited in 1969, and became
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand in 1984, Since

then, Singer’s operation has continued to expand.

In 2003, Singer was the only company that received
certificates and medals from the Office of the Consumer
Protection Board (OCBP) in 3 areas at once, namely for
correct product labeling, product and service advertising, as
well as contracts and agreements, that are fair to

consumers.

In the following year, Singer Thailand Public Company
Limited had been founded for 115 years and was selected

as one of the leading brands in Thailand that received the
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“Superbrands” award that guarantees world-class product
standard. This award proves that the Singer brand is very

well accepted by all levels of consumer groups.

Furthermore, it was the greatest honor and the
company’s ultimate pride that His Royal Majesty the King
kindly bestowed the Garuda emblem to Singer Thailand
Public Company Limited on May 24, 2004 for being a
company that has financial security, has been trusted by
the public for a long period of time, and has conducted
business with integrity and responsibility towards the
society. All members of Singer Thailand Public Company
Limited are extremely grateful to be given such an

opportunity.

These honors are proof that Singer Thailand Public
Company Limited is a company that operates with
transparency and the determination to provide service so
that the company’s customers all obtain the greatest
satisfaction that is the heart of the company’s operation

througheout the country.
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At present, the company has various modern electrical
appliances under the trademark “Singer,” for example,
television sets, mini stereos, VCD players, DVD players,
refrigerators, air conditioners, wine storages, freezers, gas
stoves, ovens, microwave ovens, water filters, hot water
machines, water vacuum cleaners,

pumps, ironing

machines, etc.

Sales that increase every year are evidence that Singer
Thailand Public Company Limited has continuously been
trusted by the customers. This is because all this time, we
and over 500 sales-support transportations to cover all
parts of Thailand to provide prompt and reliable service at
All
throughout the period of installment contracts, and include

our customer’s home. products have warranty
maintenance with parts ready to service. In addition, we
have customer service teams that travel all over the
country to provide maintenance and parts services at your

home throughout the life of your products.

From the first step of Singer sewing machines that
Thai people know well, now “Singer” is not only one of the
leading retailers of household electrical appliances under
the installment plan system, but also operates a business
that aggregates and supplies high-quality products at an
affordable price to deliver happiness to every family in the
Thai society, according to the new Singer definition,

”

* Singer, smarth choice .
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Keokhwan Vajarodaya, Lord Chamberlain of the Bureau of the Royal Household presents the Royally Granted
Tra Trang to Rear Admiral Mom Luang Usni Pramoj, Chairman of the Board of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited

at The Royal Palace Municipal office on Friday, 11st June 2004
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Photo after presentation shows Rear Admiral Mom Luang Usni Pramoj Chairman of the Board Singer Thailand Public
Company Limited Mr. Yongyut Boonpektrakul General Manager Mr. Prateep Saenghiranwathana Controller &

Finance Director Mr. Viphoch  Chiewchan Singer Direct Director Mr. Siam Uralwong Marketing Director
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Highlights of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Million Baht)

o U 31 §UnNAU (as at December 31)

2547/2004 2546/2003 2545/2002
snelfannnsane / Total sales 4,248.38 454901 3,901.50
salfsam / Total Revenues 4,285.64 457601 402427
fnladiugu / Gross Margin 1,879.44 1.957.33 1,690.88
Fuyuane / Cost of Sales 2,368.94 2,591.68 2,210.62
AldanelunsnenaznsUsnng / Selling and Administrative Expenses 1,585.86 1,613.17 1,484.17
fls 3 / Net Profit 184.19 240.08 196.99
“undneisau / Total Assets 5,280.37 4,404.21 3,558.74
wﬁ“uifm / Total liabilities 2,991.20 2,127.96 1.405.08
uvadgiaviu / Total Shareholder's Equity 2,289.17 2276.25 2,163.66
791 "UN1N9RY
(Financial Ratio)
2547/2004 2546/2003 2545/2002
dmsrinls mE (Gawaz) / Net Profit Ratio (%) 4.30 5.25 4.90
dnsuanauunusa ugnevu Goeaz) / Return on Equity (%) 8.07 10.84 9.06
ARTINARALLNUAIN UNInEsn Gaeay) / Return on Assets (%) 3.80 6.04 522
8n91 mluifunasarils v Garaz) / Dividend Pay Out Ratio (%) 51.31 56.23 56.19
Fnn vt usie uRdgialiu () / Liabilities Per Equities Ratio 1.31 0.93 0.65
finls wémaviu W) / Barnings Per Share (Baht) 0.68 0.88 0.73
Ruifuwamaiiu w ) / Dividend Per Share (Baht) 0.35 0.50 0.41
yaAenuiityTaeviu W) / Book value Per Share (Bah) 8.48 8.43 7.98
AUIUNTINIGU / Total Staff (persons) 8,149 8,069 7.885

viunenn / Notes
\iaTui 10 WAy e, 2547 LEmaanzdsuddeuulawaaiu anyaaiuaz 10 v Juganriua 1 um
The Company have changed its par value from Baht 10 to Baht 1 since May 10, 2004

NANNTUNEAINGL] WA, 2543 - W.A. 2547 / Total Sales By Year 2000-2004 HANNTINELARANUTT FIUA UNTIAN 2547 - FuAN 2547
2543 Sales by Product Line January 2004 - December 2004
5000 3832 3892 a2a4
3,800
4,000
4 o v
3.000 LATRLENH
2,000 Washing Machine 17%
- TANTENUEUA e
oL Motorcycle 44 % feu
Vilag : BTUUM 2543 2544 2545 2546 2547 -~ Refrigerator 14%

Unit : Million 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

v
o

finls BAWAL WA 2543 - W.A. 2547 / Profit By Year 2000-2004

250 200 N

197.0 .

184.2 Television 13%
200 167_.7 . | \
C Auq {ngifiugin
Others 9% Sewing Machine 3%

100 | |
o |\¥IVyiV

g AMULW 2543 2544 2545 2546 2547

Unit : Million 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 Annual Report 2004 []g

Singer Thailand Public Co., Itd
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REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

T
In the year ended December 31S , 2004 the Company achieved a net after tax profit of Baht 184.2 million compared to previous year

result of Baht 240.0 million. The major reasons the lower profit were as follows:

e Monthly collection averages 86.18% in 2004 compared to 87.5% in 2003 resulting in additional debt provisioning of Baht 29 million.
Collection performance in the Southern provinces was significantly impacted by the unrest in those areas and the Company made a
provision of Baht 5 million following the Tsunami on December 26t , 2004, which affected instalment customers in the Andaman Coast
regions.

e The Company changed its policy of recognizing ECC in 2004 resulting in a reduction in reported ECC income of Baht 12 million.
Previously the Company ceased to recognize ECC income on instalment accounts that were 5 months in arrears. In the fourth quarter
2004, this was changed to a more conservative 3 months in arrears.

e Net Profit was Baht 11 million lower as a result of lower sales revenues.

e Interest expense was Baht 11.9 million higher in 2004 than the previous year resulting the lower profit after tax Baht 8 million.
Borrowings were higher to finance the higher accounts receivable balance generated by the increased motorcycle sales and the longer
hire purchase contract period (usually 36 months) and the Company also increased its long-term borrowing position whilst reducing its
short-term position as interest rates are expected to increase in 2005.

Sales revenues for the year ended December 31St, 2004 were Baht 4,248 million, 93.4% of the prior year. Interest from
installment receivables of Baht 1,066.5 million was 35.4% higher than the prior year due to the increase of hire purchase accounts from
403,825 at the end of 2003 to 411,096 at December 31St, 2004.

Gross Margin for the year ended December 31St, 2004 was 44.2% of sales revenues compared to 43.0% in the prior year. The
improvement of % of Gross Margin came from the higher ECC as a result of high sales of motorcycles during 2003.

Selling and administration expenses were 37.3% of sales revenues in the year ended December 31St, 2004 compared to 35.5% in
the prior year. This reflects the higher provision of Bad Debt of A/R Installment Baht 81.3 million. Excluding the increased Bad Debt
provision, Selling & Administration were 35.4% of revenues.

Interest increased Baht 11.9 million was due to higher borrowing to finance the A/R Installment The company also increased its
portion of fixed long term loan with its interest rate higher than short term loan by 1.5 - 2.0% to secure against expected higher interest
rates in future.

Corporate Tax was 35.9% of the income before tax while the previous year was 29.3%. The higher tax was due to the impact of
higher provisioning for A/R Installment and an inventory reserve of Baht 35 million. However the Company achieved a tax saving on the
liquidation of an affiliated company of Baht 7 million. Therefore the total net impact was Baht 28 million. Excluding this, the paid is Baht
75 million or 26.1% of the income before tax.

Due to higher amount of Installment Accounts Receivable at December 31St, 2004 as a result of the increase of hire purchase
accounts the debt to equity ratio was 1.31, higher than the previous year but still at a comfortable level.

Basic earnings per share in the year ended December 31St, 2004 were Baht 0.68 compared to Baht 0.89 in the previous year.

The company markets a comprehensive range of sewing machines, household appliances and motorcycles through its
nationwide distribution network. 90% of sales are generated through the Singer easy credit system. The Company is now a leading
distributor of motorcycles and distributes the Suzuki, Yamaha, Tiger and Kawasaki brands in nationwide. At the end of December 2004
the Company maintained an active customer base of 411,096 installment accounts serviced through 236 Shops and 6,661 sales agents.

The efforts and professionalism of our employees have contributed significantly to the performance and we would like to thank all
the people in Singer Thailand for their loyalty and commitment. We would also like to express our appreciation to our shareholders for

their continued support.

M. . \Ja..-?’j

Rear Admiral M.L. Usni Pramoj James P. Kelly

Chairman of the Board Managing Director
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COMPANY PROFILE

Name
Singer Thailand Public Company Limited
Registration No. BorMorJor. 252

Head Office

321 Siphaya Road, Siphaya, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500
Telephone (66) 2236-0138, (66) 2236-9158-60
Facsimile (66) 2236-4242

www.singerthai.co.th

Main Business
Hire Purchase of Home Appliance, Sewing Machine,

Motrocycle, furniture and Others

Accounting Period
January 1 - December 31

Legal Advisor
Chandler and Thong - Ek Law Offices Limited

External Auditor
KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited

Registrar

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

Registered Capital

Baht 270,000,000

(270,000,000 Ordinary Shares Par Value Baht 1)
Paid-up Capital : Baht 270,000,000

Listing Date
June 28, 1984
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Risks that may affect the company’s operation can be summarized as
follows.
Sales and Marketing Risk

Sales and marketing risk refers to risks to revenues or the
company’s business operation. The company’s main revenues are
from two most important components:

1. Merchandising, namely of motorcycles, household electrical
appliances, sewing machines, mobile telephones. These products all
face high competition, and each requires constant technological
developments according to its product life cycle, which are risks that
may affect the company’s revenues. However, since the company is a
distributor, not a manufacturer, risks in terms of technology do not
directly impact the company’s business strategies. In addition, the
company possesses distribution channels throughout the country, which
reduces the risks in distributing products to consumers.

2. Interests received from leasing and interests received from
personal loans, which are specified as fixed rates in leasing or loan
contracts according to competition. However, loan interests in the
market are not fixed and constantly fluctuate, resulting in risks to the
costs of capital that may become higher than in the leasing or loan
contracts that were agreed upon with the customers. Thus, to reduce
such risks, approximately 70% of the company’s loan is fixed-rate
loans for 2-3 years as appropriate to the risks of changing loan interests.
Accounts Receivable Risk

Accounts receivable is considered the heart of business
operation as more than 90% of sales is leasing sales. Therefore, the
company places a very high emphasis on accounts receivable. To
reduce risks that may occur from accounts receivable, namely, non-
payment, non-performing loans, frauds in accounts receivable, the
company has specified various policies to strictly monitor
accounts receivable, starting from credit scoring, tracking, evaluating, as
well as prosecuting and court proceedings in case of late or non-
payment, all considered operational steps. In addition, the
company has established the credit risk department independent from
payment collection in order to allow faster operation. As for collateral
or guarantor, risks that may occur from non-payment, or default risks,
are operational principles that the company has followed for a long
time. Moreover, the company has reserved for losses that may occur
from accounts receivable based on conservatism as appropriate to the
situation, for example, the company has reserved for damage to accounts
receivable from the tsunami disaster in the southern part of Thailand.
Manufacturing Risk

Most products that the company merchandises are from OEM
(Original Equipment Manufacturers) manufacturing orders.
Therefore, the company relies directly on manufacturers to deliver the
goods. Thus, the company has contacted several manufacturers, not
specifically only one, in conducting business. This is to prevent
monopoly by just one manufacturer. This also creates bargaining power
with regards to quality, price, and certainty in manufacturing.
Financial Risk

The company’s operation requires some financing from
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RISK FACTORS

borrowing from banks, financial institutions, as well as investment
bankers. Uncertainties arise from conditions in money and capital
markets both domestic and international. Therefore, the company is
inevitably affected by changes that occur in financial liquidity and
loan interests. The company has a borrowing policy from banks,
financial institutions, and investment bankers not to borrow only from
a specific bank or financial institution. This is to mitigate the risks of
loan sources. Also, since there are both fixed and floating borrowing
interest rates in the ratio appropriate to the situations, risks that occur
from exchange rates affect the company’s operation in terms of
importing, which on average does not exceed 10% of the company’s
gross sales. In addition, the company has bought forward contract as
required and as appropriate to prevent such risks, without any policy to
seek profits from exchange rates speculations.
Government Operation Risk

Leasing business is highly competitive that the government
has emphasized the need to control by establishing the Office of the
Consumer Protection Board (OCBP) charged with the task of preventing
enterprises in the leasing industry from taking unfair advantage of
consumers. At the same time, the Department of Business Develop-
ment, the Ministry of Commerce is reviewing the bill for leasing business
that will be used as guiding principles in specifying interest rates,
fees for late or non-payment, or fines for late payment, which if un-
regulated may result in consumers’ being unfairly taken advantage of.
In addition, there will be an introduction of laws that require enterprises’
product liabilities towards consumers. Therefore, the company has speci-
fied guiding principles regarding the company’s leasing business, as
well as product warranty to align with the guidelines specified by the
government. Also, the company has continued to follow news and
information regarding this matter and has applied it to improve and
develop the company’s operation to conform to the government’s
rules and regulations. This can be witnessed by the fact that, for example,
the company has received certificates for Labeling, Advertising, and
Contract or Agreement that are fair to consumers from the Office of
the Consumer Protection Board (OCBP) on January 21, 2003.
Human Resources Risk

Human resources are considered an important contributing factor
to the success of the company, and thus can generate risks to the
company’s operation, for instance, retirements, resignations, etc, which
may halt the company’s business. The company is well aware of this
fact and has as a result placed an emphasis on every employee and
cared for each of them as if he or she were in the same family. The
company has supported its human resources as appropriate to their
tasks and continuously and consistently developed them by endorsing
the project to establish a training and learning center for employees
called the Singer Academy in 2005.
Product Confiscation Risk

Normally leasing business is subject to risks in terms of product
confiscation. This is inevitable. Even though product confiscations are
considered risks as they decrease revenues and increase inventory, on
the other hand they are compensation to damage that may be caused
by customers’ non-payments as the company can still sell confiscated
products in second-hand product markets, which is another form of

marketing strategy.
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The overall picture of the Thai economy in 2004 may
have had negative factors that occasionally affected the
situation, for instance, the higher oil price, or violence in the
three southern border provinces. As for the tsunami disaster,
its affect to the Thai economy in 2004 is not too severe since
the disaster occurred during the last weekend of the year.
However, despite these negative factors, the Thai economy
expanded at a satisfactory rate, due to many positive factors,
such as:

- The government’s policy to inject money into the economy,
especially the injection of money into the grass roots level

- Low interest rates, which enable consumers to
consume more

- Increased investment

As for Thailand’s economic trend in 2005, Kasikorn
Research Center’s analysis indicates that even though there
would be more negative factors, the Thai economy would
continue to be supported by the investment cycle. That is, the
continuity of investment growth will be a factor that supports
demand for capital products. Moreover, this will encourage
investment as well as employment in businesses that support
investment activities, which can subsequently affect
consumption.

Another positive factor is the direction of the Thai Baht
that has appreciated as the US dollar weakens. This may help
ease the pressure in terms of inflation rates and increasing
interest rates, as well as reduce the costs of imports in the
business sector.

In 2005, the private sector’s consumption will remain
high due to the high competition in the loan market, espe-
cially in personal loans, which have a trend to grow continu-

ously.

Electrical appliance leasing business

There are 7 major domestic players in the leasing business,
namely Singer Thailand Public Company Limited, GE Capital
(Thailand) Company Limited, Mida Asset Public Company
Limited, Cetelem (Thailand) Company Limited, AEON Thana
Sinsap (Thailand) Public Company Limited, and DE Capital
Company Limited. Aside from providing leasing service for
electrical appliances, each of these companies offers leasing
loans for various other products, for example, communications
equipment, office equipment, furniture, motorcycles, musical

instruments, etc.
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Strategies that leasing service providers employ to adjust
to the recession in the market due to decreasing consumer
demand or competition for market shares are:

- Increasing payback periods

- Expanding new customer base by lowering minimum
incomes for loan considerations to 5,000 Baht per month, or
considering the customers’ ability to payback from income
sources other than their monthly salary

- Reducing leasing interest rates to O percent with the
help of manufacturers and authorized dealers taking on the
interest burden for the lessees

- Rushing to expand service branches to cover distribution
areas, especially in the modern trade store group

- Providing product warranty that covers a longer
period of time than that of the manufacturer’s standard

- Shortening the time used to process loan applications

- Allowing customers to trade old products with new
ones

- Providing increased convenience in payment

- Increasing the diversity of product offerings

The competition situation in the electrical appliance
leasing business in 2005 will continue to grow from the
previous year. The current situation of this business,
combined with the fact that there are many players in the
market, results in an even higher competition. Each player
competes to provide a number of alternatives to consumers,
for instance, offering a 0-percent interest rate, or an instant
loan approval. From the current competition situation, players
turn to expand in personal loans, which will become more

important in the future.

Electrical appliances

In 2004, the competition in the market was fierce, partly
as a result of an influx of cheap products from China. Conse-
quently, players in the market had to utilize pricing strategies
to continuously stimulate the market. Players also introduced
sales promotional campaigns that give away gifts when
purchase and relied on credit or leasing sales by forming a
business alliance with companies that directly provide leasing
service or installments through credit cards. In addition, players
had to consider modern trade distribution channels, such as
discount stores, special stores, department stores, and authorized
dealers, which are electrical appliances stores, in order to
expand branches into rural provinces.

In 2005, the electrical appliance market has a trend to
expand at approximately 5 percent. Overall, the Thai economy

this year will expand at a satisfactory rate. Many research
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INDUSTRY TRENDS AND MARKET DYNAMICS

centers have forecasted that the country’s GDP will be at
5-5.8 percent. This would occur along with a higher political
security, a policy that encourages consumer spending, and
growth in the real estate market whose supply surplus has
diminished. With all these forecasts, even though the electrical
appliance market this year is predicted to grow only very
little, rural markets would expand quite much, especially in
the leasing market, where electrical appliances are still highly

demanded by consumers at the grass roots level.

Motorcycles

Year 2004 was considered a golden year for the motor-
cycle market, with estimated annual gross sales of 2 million
motorcycles, a much higher growth than was forecasted at
the beginning of the year.

An important factor that contributed to a high growth
in the motorcycle market in 2004 was the increase of oil price
that resulted in consumers’ saving and becoming conscious
of their spending on car use, and changing to motorcycles
instead, which was favorable to the motorcycle business. Also,
competition among financing companies that provide loans to
customers purchasing motorcycles is another factor that helped
to significantly boost motorcycle sales.

As for sales in the first half of 2004, a survey by
Prachachat Dhurakit newspaper, found that Honda had the
highest sales at 730,747 motorcycles, which accounted for 72
percent of the total market, while Yamaha had the second
highest sales instead of Suzuki for the second consecutive
month. Yamaha sold 133,668 motorcycles, which was 7,341
more than Suzuki, which sold 126,327 motorcycles.
Companies with the fourth and fifth highest sales were Tiger
and Kawasaki, with sales of 17,608 and 12,721 motorcycles
respectively. JRD, a Malaysian motorcycle company, sold 6,766
motorcycles. The rest of sales, another 1,419 motorcycles, was
made by other companies.

Overall in the first half of 2004, Yamaha, growing by 51
percent, was the motorcycle company with the largest sales
expansion. Honda follows in second place in terms of sales
growth, expanding at 13 percent, while Suzuki’s sales
increased by 8 percent. Overall, the industry expanded by 15
percent. Companies with declining sales were Tiger, whose
sales declined by 36 percent, and Kawasaki, whose sales
declined by 17 percent.

When separating motorcycles into type, scooter motor-
cycles had the highest growth compared to other motorcycle
types. Scooter motorcycles sales expanded by 262 percent,

with sales of 13,5632 motorcycles. This was followed by sales
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growth of the family-sporty type of motorcycle, which grew
by 71 percent and had total sales of 15,336 motorcycles. As
for family motorcycles, sales growth was at 7 percent, with
total sales of 146,876 motorcycles. Sporty motorcycles were
the only motorcycle type that had a declining growth, at 156
percent, and sales of 1,465 motorcycles.

In 2005, combined sales of all brands of motorcycles are
expected to reach 2.1 million units.

Sewing machines

At present various consumer goods that are used in
daily life, for example, shirts, pants, skirts, bags, shoes, sheets,
pillow covers, etc, all require sewing machines in their
production. Therefore, sewing machines are widely used by
large, medium, and small businesses, as well as individuals
who purchase one to use in their household. The sewing
machine market can be roughly divided into two categories:
industrial sewing machines that are used to produce
consumer goods for industrial and commercial purposes, and
regular sewing machines that are used for sewing purposes in
households. Brands that are popular in Thailand’s sewing
machine market are Singer, Janome, Elna, Brother, and Juki.
At the moment there are also various brands of cheap sewing
machines that are imported from China that have come to
compete in the Thai market.

Because sewing machines are durable products and have
a relatively long product life, depending on whether or not
usage is appropriate to the sewing machine type, replacement
rates are minimal. Also, the Thai society has changed in a
way that people tend to purchase ready-to-wear clothes
instead of making clothes themselves, as was the case in the
past since ready-to-wear clothes are trendier, cheaper, and
more convenient than having to design and sew their clothes
themselves. These factors have resulted in a slow growth of
regular household sewing machine sales. However, players in
the sewing machine market have tried to stimulate demand
for sewing machines by incorporating modern technology into
developing sewing machines to become more effective, turning
them into computer sewing machines that are aesthetic,
modern, compact, easy to use, and able to perform various
kinds of task without requiring many skills and expertise from
users as did the traditional ones. These new models of sewing
machines are intended to support the trend of consumers’
DIY tasks, for which players in the sewing machine market
have also exercised pricing strategies to initiate consumers’
demand. In the government sector, there has been a policy
that encourages jobs for housewife groups according to the
“One Tambon One Product (OTOP)” Project, as well as the
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Bangkok Fashion City Project. These projects can ensure players
in Thailand’s sewing machine market that in the years following

2005, the market will certainly expand.

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited

There was little expansion in the electrical appliance
market in 2004 due to many negative factors, such as oil
price, violence in the southermn part of Thailand, and increasing
competition in the electrical appliance market that consists of
both products from existing manufacturers and cheap, low-
quality products that are imported from China to compete in
the Thai market. Despite these negative factors, the company
continued to profit as a result of bringing more motorcycle
products into the company’s leasing system. Total sales of
motorcycles in 2004 accounted for 44 percent of the company’s
total sales, which demonstrated the capacity of Singer Thailand
Public Company Limited’s direct, leasing sales system that
can distribute products to all regions of the country.

According to an economic forecast for 2005, although
several negative factors would still be in effect, there would
be a continuous expansion due to increasing domestic
consumption and higher political security. The company has

specified plans to expand and develop products as well as to
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INDUSTRY TRENDS AND MARKET DYNAMICS

increase the number of authorized dealers and develop their
capacity. It also plans to increase distribution channels and
the number of branch stores to expand business. The company
aims to distribute other brands of electrical appliances, and
launch its own fighting brand. At the same time it will
develop the Singer electrical appliances to respond more to
consumers’ demand. The company plans to enlarge the distri-
bution areas of its motorcycle products, and to offer personal
loans to customers for purposes that the company has speci-
fied, for example, for taking a Buddhism monastic vow, for
education, and for marriage, etc.

As for the fierce competition in the market, the com-
pany has plans to become more aggressive by investing in
transportation and for the first time having its own transport-
ing unit in order to bring products and services to approxi-
mately 400,000-500,000 existing customers’ homes to respond
to their demand. Additionally, it will focus on returning to its
old base of 2-3 million customers nationwide via a CRM system.

In order for such plans to effectively achieve their goals,
the company has provided training for its employees to
increase their knowledge and skills, supported them with
regards to sales promotions, and sought opportunities to

partner with other companies to achieve these goals together.
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Background

In 1889, Singer Sewing Company of the United States
appointed Kiam Hua Heng Company Limited as the distributor of Singer
sewing machines in Thailand. Later, in 1905, Singer Sewing Company of
the United States established a branch operation in Thailand under the
name Singer Sewing Machine Company Limited, with an objective to
distribute imported sewing machines and other products related to sewing
machines. The company first began its leasing service with installment
plans in 1925. This service has become a tradition of Singer both in
Thailand and overseas. Over the next 50 years, the company continued
to sell only sewing machines and other products related to sewing
machines. In 1957, the company began selling household electrical
appliances, starting with refrigerators. Later, on November 24, 1969, “Singer
Thailand Company Limited” was established as a company limited under
the Thai laws to take over the business of “Singer Sewing Machine
Company Limited,” which subsequently ceased operation. Singer Thailand
Company Limited began with a registered capital of 60 million Baht. At
present it as a registered capital of 270 million Baht, which is all issued
and paid-up. The company was also approved as a registered and listed
company on the Stock Exchange of Thailand in 1984. On January 4,
1994, the company registered to transform into a “public company limited.”
Ever since its conception, the company has conducted business with
honesty, integrity, and responsibility towards the society, and has
contributed to Thailand’s economic development. On May 24, 2004, His
Royal Majesty the King bestowed a Garuda emblem to Singer Thailand
Public Company Limited, and the Prime Minister, under an order from
His Royal Majesty the King, pronounced Singer Thailand Public
Company Limited a Royal company on June 3, 2004.

Company and subsidiaries business operation

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited is a distributor of products
under the “Singer” trademark and various other brands of electrical appli-
ances, including other kinds of product, such as Suzuki, Yamaha, Tiger,
and Kawasaki motorcycles, and Nokia mobile telephone sets. The com-
pany began distributing these products through its Singer Direct stores,
while other brands of electrical appliances have been sold through its
Singer Direct Plus.

This year, Singer has categorized its business operation according
to methods and types of distribution channel into the Singer Direct
business, the Singer Direct Plus business, and the wholesale business,
so that the company can correctly specify the direction of its business
operation.

At present, Singer Thailand Public Company Limited distributes
the Singer as well as other brands of electrical appliances in both cash
and installment payment systems. Singer products can be separated into

product groups as follows:

Annual Report 2004
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BUSINESS OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

Singer products, which are:

- Sewing machine products, for example, sewing machines, ironing
machines, needles, multi-purpose lubricating oil, scissors, etc

- Household electrical appliance products, for example,
refrigerators, freezers, washing machines, gas stoves, air conditioners,
microwave ovens, vacuum cleaners, etc

- Audio and video products, for example, color television sets,

DVD players, VCD players, stereos, etc

Other products, which are:

- Motorcycles, IT products such as digital cameras, furniture, mobile
telephone sets, under various trademarks

- Other brands of household electrical appliances

Under the “Singer” trademark, the company distributes products
in both cash and installment payment systems via direct sales, the
company’s retail stores, and other authorized dealers throughout the
country. Most products that Singer Thailand Public Company Limited
distributes are from OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer), which
are mostly domestic manufacturers that the company has ordered to
manufacture under the “Singer” trademark in order to support its business
operation. At present, Singer Thailand Public Company Limited still holds
over 99 percent in three companies: Singer Industry (Thailand) Company
Limited, Singer (Broker) Company Limited, and STL Electronics Company

Limited.

Projects for new products and services

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited has launched a new
cash loan service under the name “Singer Quick Cash” that offers cash
loans with a fixed payment period of 12-13 installments for cash credit of
10,000-50,000 Baht. This service is offered through the company’s branches
all over the country, and relies primarily on direct sales. It focuses on
customers with medium incomes or lower who live in the rural and
suburban areas, as well as existing customers with good payment history.

“Singer Quick Cash” has as its selling point a low interest rate
compared to its competitors’ in the same market. It is also convenient to
apply and pay back the loan. Representatives will service at the customer’s
homes. It is very easy to apply, and customers are notified of their

application’s result very quickly and can get the money right away.

o Singer (Broker) Company Limited
Singer (Broker) Company Limited is an authorized dealer of life
insurance for insurance companies, at the moment Muang Thai Life
Insurance Company Limited. Only Singer Thailand Public Company
Limited’s employees who have life insurance authorized dealer permits
are assigned to sell life insurance to customers.
o Singer Industry (Thailand) Company Limited
Singer Industry (Thailand) Company Limited was established to
serve as an assembly plant for sewing machines, gas stoves, light
industrial motors, and sewing machine oil so that Singer Thailand Public

Company Limited can distribute them domestically and internationally
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until mid 2002, a policy to cease the manufacture and assembly of such
products and directly import finished products instead. This is because
the costs of importing finished products are lower than the costs of
manufacturing and assembling domestically (at the moment the com-
pany is in the process of deciding which business to pursue).
e S'T.L Electronics Company Limited
STL Electronics Company Limited has closed its operation since
the end of 2001. It is currently completing its accounting settlement.
e Sansui (Thailand) Limited
Sansui (Thailand) Limited registered to close down its operation
and registered the completion of its accounting settlement on
November 23, 2004.
e Singer Trading (Thailand) Limited
Singer Trading (Thailand) Limited registered to close down its
operation and registered the completion of its accounting settlement on

December 29, 2004.

Product supplies

For sewing machines supplies, after the middle of 2002, the
company has changed from ordering sewing machines from Singer
Industry (Thailand) Company Limited to ordering finished sewing
machines directly from overseas. This is because the costs of
importing finished sewing machines are lower than the costs of manu-
facturing and assembling domestically. Goods purchased from overseas
manufacturers account for approximately 5 percent of the company’s
total purchased goods.

For electrical appliances, the company orders from domestic manu-
facturers in the form of OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer). That is,
manufacturers produce goods under the “Singer” trademark for the
company. Major manufacturers of household electrical appliances for the
company are:

1. Sanyo Universal Electric Public Company Limited, which
manufactures refrigerators, washing machines, freezers, and wine storages

2. Sharp Thebnakorn Company Limited, which manufactures
television sets, stereos, and karaoke VCD players

3. Thai Samsung Electronics Company Limited, which manufactures
refrigerators, air conditioners, and washing machines

4. Premier CE Company Limited, which manufactures television
sets, and hot water machines

5. Premier Manufacturing Company Limited, which manufactures
gas stoves, and hot-cold water dispensers

6. LG Mitr Electronics Company Limited, which manufactures
washing machines, and vacuum cleaners

7. Hitachi Company Limited, which manufactures water pumps

Aside from goods that are distributed under the Singer
trademark, Singer Thailand Public Company Limited also supplies other
brands of products to distribute in the Singer stores in order to expand
business and provide more options to customers. These products are, for

example:

Annual Report 2004
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BUSINESS OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

1. Motorcycles, which are ordered from SP Suzuki Public Company
Limited, Thai Yamaha Motor Company Limited, Tiga Motor Sales Company
Limited, Baan Suzuki Company Limited, and Kawasaki Motor Enterprise
(Thailand) Company Limited

2. Mobile telephone sets, which are ordered from United Commu-
nications Industry (Terminal) Company Limited, and Advanced Wireless
Marketing Company Limited

3. Other brands of electrical appliances, such as, Panasonic,
Samsung, and Toshiba, etc

4. Furniture

Market and competition situation
Competitive strategies in brief

The company utilizes direct sales strategies for leasing to-
gether with cash sales. Leasing sales are operated under consistent tight
control to limit bad debt to the minimum level. Products that the com-
pany distributes have the same quality as products from other manufac-
turers. Cash sales of the company’s products are priced similar to those
of other brands. The company’s target customers are divided into three
groups as follows:

1. Customers in the “Singer Direct” system: customers with me-
dium incomes or lower, with a higher emphasis on customers in the rural
areas than those in the urban areas

2. Customers in the “Singer Plus” system: customers with me-
dium incomes or higher who mostly reside in Bangkok and other major
cities throughout the country

3. Wholesale customers: sales via authorized dealers as well as
new distribution channels in the modern trade, with an emphasis on

sewing machines and small household electrical appliances

A rapid growth of products in the motorcycle group from 23
percent of the company’s sales in 2003 to over 44 percent of the company’s
sales in 2004 is due to experience and improved sales quality of the
company’s salespeople and other involved human resources. It is also
attributed to a different sales strategy that brings in direct sales, which
has proven to be very successful. In 2005, the company has introduced
side-affixed motorcycles for SMEs into the market, which is considered
an opening of a new market for motorcycles for professional use. The
company is also offering a business loan under the name “Singer Quick
Cash” to support investments at the grass roots level that is the company’s

main clientele.

Other than introducing a new model of motorcycles into the mar-
ket, the company has placed an emphasis on after-sales service by open-
ing 18 standard service centers in major cities throughout the country as
well as 38 service networks in districts, sub-districts, and villages. In
2005, the company has a goal of adding 5 more service centers and
increasing service networks to 100 locations. All centers and networks
will receive training to enhance quality and increase mechanics’ skills in

all networks.



BUSINESS OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

As for sales target for motorcycle products in 2005, the company
aims to be the country’s number one domestic distributor of leading

brands of motorcycles.

With regards to strategies for products in the main product groups,
for example, household electrical appliances, in 2005 the company will
exercise an aggressive strategy to maintain its market leadership in the
product leasing market. At the same time, it will launch new products to
respond to customer’s needs and publicize super brand logos in all areas
of the country to align with the company’s vision that “Singer brings
happiness into every household with select products. We aim to be the

leader in the installment payment business.”

Distribution channel strategies
The company conducts direct sales primarily. Over 95

percent of the company’s gross sales are from direct sales, and over 90

é’merm:miﬂi:nauqiﬁ@

percent of the company’s gross sales are from leasing sales. The
company distributes products through its branch stores. At present there
are 218 such stores and 21 Singer Direct Plus stores, totaling 239 stores
nationwide. There are 7,220 salespeople whom the company has provided
training for so that they become very knowledgeable in the company’s
products. These salespeople are an important force in the company’s

market expansion.

As for quality control of leasing accounts, the company conducts
checks post-sales by assigning account checkers to audit the accuracy of
each lease to verify whether there has in deed been a sale to the lessee
at the price reported to the company. In so doing, these account checkers
also visits the lessee’ home. At present the company has 141 account
checkers to audit leasing accounts throughout the country. In addition,
at the company’s headquarters there is a unit that controls the operation

of all account checkers and verifies the accuracy of leasing contracts.

Annual Report 2004
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant transactions with related parties as shown in note
no. 4 of the company's financial statement arose to enable the company
to assess clearer operating performance of each business segment.
Operations of related companies in 2004 compared with 2003 were
summarized as follows:

1. Conducting life insurance broker business, Singer (Broker)
Limited reported lower sales and net profit in 2004 than those in 2003
due to keen competition in life insurance business and less incentive
on part of sales agents who hold life insurance licenses. Nevertheless,
the Company still regards life insurance business beneficial to cover
the customers and their families with the plan to change the payment
scheme from annual payment to monthly payment.

2. After ceasing operation in mid-2002, and selling the
unused building to Singer Thailand to be used as its warehouse facilities
on 31 December 2003 as reported to the Shareholders, Singer Industries
(Thailand) sold all unused machines and wrote off all unused materials
treated as the requirement of the Revenue Department. As at December
31, 2004, Singer Industries (Thailand) have total assets valued at Baht
8.1 million which was composed of cash on hand amounting to Baht
0.5 million, receivable (Singer Thailand) amounting to Baht 7.4 million
and other assets amounting to Baht 0.2 million. The interest rate charged
to the loan to Singer Thailand is applied from the saving account’s
interest rate of Bank Asia that Singer Industries (Thailand) have the
business transactions.

3. After squeezing the accounts receivables overdue along with
the regulation of the Revenue Department, S.T.L. Electronics Co., Ltd.
took all of them out the Balance Sheet. The money received is not
sufficient to repay the debt owed to Singer Thailand as the judgment
of the Court. As the S.T.L. Electronics’ Financial Reports as of December
31, 2004, it was shown that total liabilities are more than total assets
with the amount of Baht 18.8 million. On this stage, S.T.L. Electronics
is under the process of liquidation.

4. After filing requests for dissolution in October 2003, both
Sansui (Thailand) Ltd. and Singer Trading (Thailand) Ltd. have
completely liquidated since November 23, 2004 and December 29,
2004 respectively.

According to the management's comment, related party
transactions between the Company and subsidiaries as well as
associated and related companies as shown in the company's
financial statement as at December 31, 2004 were prepared fairly and
appropriately, benefiting the group.

Singer has no such policy to conduct transactions with
contradictory parties except special cases and/or the case, which
provides maximum gains to the company and comes up with fair
transactions under the approval of the company's board of directors
and the meeting of shareholders as required by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. For future related party transactions, the company
retains policy to provide loans to subsidiary companies to support

their operations, financially with interest charged at the market rates.
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neamuluiFEndas 1FEMsL LazLFEmaY
Investment in Subsidiary, Associated and Other Companies

ﬁ'fauaz*?iagj “n umsau dszianfianis
Name and Address Percentage of Business
Investment
u3un daned dusainad) 1in nuannzideu 200,000 LN 99.70% UNETI
321 auu mezen 1wALNeN NIUNNWLNIUAT Registered Capital 200,000 Baht Usziuinin
Tnedwn 0-2236-0138 Viu iy 2000 Vju/Shares Life Insurance
Singer (Broker) limited Ordinary Shares Broker
321 Siphaya Road, Bangrak, Bangkok Vluﬂhﬁf:LLé"J 200,000 U
Paid-up Capital 200,000 Baht
138 9 winssudanad aszmalne) sain yuaanzideu 5,000,000 10 99.88% WM 1A
8 mﬁ 4 9. wlan-t w1 A ueudla 8.l un Registered Capital 5,000,000 Baht Manufacturing
9. WITUATATREYSEN 13110 Viu oy 5,000 ¥iu/Shares
N3 0-3520-1702 Ordinary Shares
Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited NUTTTURY 5,000,000 LN
8 Moo 4. Samkok-Sena Road, Tambol Paid-up Capital 5,000,000 Baht
Bangnomkho, Amphur Sena, Changwad
Pranakornsri Ayutthaya
U3 18 . 7. uea. alaAlngtla ” 91in NuaAnzideu 5,000,000 1L - BEIININ
321 ouu weven mLnesn NIUNNWLNIUAT Registered Capital 5,000,000 Baht N9y
Tnsdiwi 0-2236-0138 Yiu iy 5,000 ¥ju/Shares In the Process
S.T.L. Electronics Company Limited Ordinary Shares of Liquidation

321 Siphaya Road, Bangrak, Bangkok nuﬂh‘a‘:ué"a 5,000,000 UN

Paid-up Capital 5,000,000 Baht

vineme  sunsdusn ity aTuil 31 funnau 2547 TlAsautEnges 13 1@ . 1. uea. Blaalnsiia T 90iin
1dnvieunNIe U lasannusEnainanalieslutuneunisdis iyl
Note : The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004 do not include

a subsidiary, S.T.L. Electronics Company Limited, which is in the process of liquidation.
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REVENUES’ STRUCTURE

Tase Fremelavnaim au wnuneglim afuaz teudadun  weldamaluil -
The Company Revenues’ Structure depends on geographical area and product line is as follows: -

(WULN / Thousand Bht.)

2547/2004 % 2546/2003 2545/2002 %

DOMESTIC SALES TURNOVER BY PRODUCT

snANsENULUA / Motorcycle 1,870,736 44 1,040,680 23 219,113 6
Lm??lm;ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂ / Washing Machine 704,206 17 925,957 20 790,361 20
A\fu / Refrigerator 600,748 14 572,737 13 589,483 15
Inavienl” / Television 548,333 13 970,632 21 951,949 25
Anqifiudin / Sewing Machine 123,689 3 161,450 4 249,930 6
saugamnsantngludszina 3,847,712 3,671,456 2,800,836

Sum of Main Products

rAnduTauludssina 395,877 9 871,078 19 1,090,875 28
Sales of other products

yamneIveaeLs TN - - -

Export sales

sauyaAIN1eIming / Total 4,243 589 100 4,542,534 100 3891711 100
An9INSIAL (M) UBYAAINTIINLNE 2547/2004 2546/2003 2545/2002
Sales Growth (6.58%) 16.72% 1.55%

vineme  UFEMAugeiene T uAll ununegeiaien uazaiiiugsialu uauneglim adisedAe
Tudszmelne daluaadiladnis uedeyanianisRudtuunmu uau
Note : The Company trades in a single business segment and in a single geographical area i.e., Thailand.

Accordingly no segment information has been presented.

genuLlszantl 2547
13N dunaddszinalng 91in @man)
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Accounting Period 2004 (January 1, 2004 - December 31, 2004)
Statements of Income
Sales revenues

Sales revenues in 2004 were 15.4 % lower than the previous year
mainly due to a significant sales decrease of electrical home appliances
and sewing machines under the fierce competitive electrical home appli-
ance market. Though sales of motorcycles increased so much that the
portion of motorcycles turnover became to 44 percents of total sales
revenue. It could not cover with the significant decrease of electrical
appliance and sewing machines.
Interest from installment receivables

Interest from installment receivables in 2004 rose 35.4 % over the
year earlier due to the increase of hire purchase accounts and longer
installment period from 21 months to 27 months especially terms of
payment for motorcycle installment sales average to 36 months.
Gain from sales of fixed assets

Gain from sales of fixed assets in 2004 was which Baht 26.5
million came from disposal of the unused plot of land at Bang-Pa-Kong
to the outsider who do not have any relationship with the Company.
Other income

Other income in 2004 was Baht 9.3 million lower than the prior
year because the Company did not have any transaction about the
dividends payable reversed by virtue of the regulation set out by
Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. in respect of nationality of the
shareholders as the prior year.
Cost of sales

Cost of sales in 2004 rose 8.6 % over the prior year while sales
revenues decreased 15.4 %. This was primarily due to the higher sales
portion of motorcycles, which grew from 23% of total sales in 2003 to
44% in 2004. Gross margin of motorcycle sales was 6-8% as compared to
30-40% for the traditional electrical products.
Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales
revenues were 37.3 % and 35.5 % in year 2004 and 2003 respectively.
This reflects the higher provision of Bad Debt of A/R Installment.
Excluding the increased Bad Debt provision, selling and administrative
expenses were 35.4 % of sales revenues.
Interest expense

Interest expense increased Baht 11.9 million was due to higher
borrowing to finance the A/R Installment. The Company also increased
its portion of fixed long-term loan with its interest rate higher than
short-term loan by 1.5-2.0 % to secure against expected higher
interest rates in future.
Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax was 35.9% of the income before tax while the
previous year was 29.3%. The higher tax was due to the impact of higher
provisioning for A/R Installment and an inventory reserve of Baht 35 million.
However the Company achieved a tax saving on the liquidation of an affiliated
company of Baht 7 million. Therefore the total net impact was Baht 28 million.
Excluding this, the paid is Baht 75 million or 26.1 % of the income before tax.
Net after tax profit

A decrease of net after tax profit by Baht 55.9 million or 23.3%
compared with the prior year has impact on a decrease of earnings per
share from Baht 0.89 in 2003 to Baht 0.68 in 2004.
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FINANCIAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS ANALYSIS

Balance Sheets and Statements of Cash Flows
Trade and Installment Accounts Receivable

Based on the Company’s balance sheets as at 31st December
2004, the Company had total assets of Baht 5,280 million, a Baht 876
million increase from Baht 4,404 million in 2003 due to the jump of
installment accounts from 403,825 at the end of 2003 to 411,096 as at
31st December 2004. Average value of installment account was Baht
14,000 each in 2004 as compare to Baht 12,000 each in 2003. The main
reason for growing number of installment accounts was longer period of
payment for example sales of a motorcycle under hire-purchase contract
generally take 36 months to complete all installment payments. Given
the higher number of installment accounts, the Company recorded an
increase of unearned interest on installment sales by Baht 278 million
which needed to be effectively attended to by the Company’s dynamic
sales force (altogether 7,220 sales agents). At the end of December 2004,
the Company achieved 86.18% of paying on total installment accounts.
Please see the notes to the Consolidated and Company Financial State-
ments No. b for trade and installment accounts that were overdue.
Inventories

As a result of more orders of the inventories especially motorcycles
with higher cost in order to sell in the final quarter of the year 2004
according to the Management’s strategy to push sale up, the inventories
on hand increased by Baht 296.6 million compared with the prior year.
This caused to the turnover rate of inventory reduced from 5.71 times in
2003 to 4.26 times in 2004.
Liabilities

Liabilities as at 31st December 2004 increased by Baht 863
million over the previous year mainly due to the higher borrowings of
medium-term loans obtained to finance the installment sales, which grew
steadily. Although the medium-term loans bearing the interest rate higher
than the short-term loans was about 1.56-2.0% per annum, the Company
accepted to obtain it in order to secure against expected higher interest
rates in future and to balance an increase of motorcycle installment
accounts which have longer term from 21 periods to 27 periods in average
term. As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s cost of fund was about
3.0-4.0% per annum with the portion of short-term loans to
medium-term loans included the current portion of long-term loans equal
to 25 : 75. This increase caused to the Company’s ratio of debts to equity
shifted from 0.93 times at the end of the year 2003 to 1.31 times at the
end of the year 2004.
Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity in the year ended December 31, 2004

was Baht 13 million higher than the previous year due to the net amount
of an increase of retained earnings (Net profit of Baht 184 million less
dividends payment of Baht 135 million) and a decrease of surplus on
revaluation of land equivalent to Baht 36 million when the Company sold
the unused land at Bang-Pa-Kong to the outsider who did not have any
relationship with the Company.

Overview of the Company’s performance

The analysis of financial percentage in year 2004 compared to
year 2003 is as follows :-

1. Profit making capability : The Company reported a decrease in
net profit and return on equity of 5.25% and 10.84% in year 2003 to
4.30% and 8.07% in year 2004 respectively. The major reasons for the
decrease are as follows :-

- A change in interest recognition of overdue installment accounts
from 5 periods to 3 periods per SEC’s new regulations imposed on
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Consumer Finance Business. This change had an adverse impact of Baht
12 million to net profit for the year 2004.

- A change in product sales mix from electrical appliances with
gross margin at the level of 30 - 40 % to motorcycles with gross margin
only at the level of 6 - 8 %. However the Company can get longer term
of motorcycle installment accounts at about 36 months than electrical
appliances account at about 24 months. This caused to interest earned
from installment sales in year 2004 higher than year 2003. At end of year
2004, the portion of motorcycles turnover increased from 23 % in year
2003 to 44 % in year 2004.

- An increase of higher provision for bad debts per receivable
aging due to an incremental portion of longer-term motorcycle installment
accounts from 7% to 17% of the total installment accounts as well as a
slightly decrease in percentage of collection.

- An additional bad debts reserve for Tsunami’s disaster with the
amount of Baht 5 million.

- An increase of interest expense by Baht 12 million due to the
growth of motorcycle installment accounts with longer installment period
than electrical appliance. In order to support this growth, the Company
have increased the medium-term borrowing with the higher interest rate
by 1.5-2.0% per annum.

- An increase of the corporate income tax by Baht 3.7 million due
to higher provision of bad debts and obsolete inventories.

2. In terms of liquidity, the current ratio deteriorated, standing at
0.12 in 2004 while the quick ratio dropped to 0.23 primarily due to
investment of net cash flows from operating activities into installment
receivables and inventories that represented the core of the Company’s
business. It was expected the investment would generate the unearned
interest from installment receivables as high as Baht 1,511 million and
64% of total installment accounts would be due for payment within one
year. This was one of the reasons why the Company always had operating
fund from the paid-up installment accounts. Paid-up percentage for the
year-ended 2004 stood at 86.18%.

3. Liabilities per equities ratio in 2004 was 1.31 as compared to
0.93 in 2003 due to increase in total borrowings to finance the hire-
purchase service scheme. This ratio was considered low risk.

4. Operation efficiency : The Company have to improve both
account receivables and inventory management according to the ratios
of asset return and turn over of assets which reduced from 6.03% and
1.15 times in 2003 to 3.80% and 0.89 times in 2004 respectively. The
problem of the above came from the dramatic increases of the receivables
overdue 3 months as well as of the inventories on hand in 2004. To solve
the problem, the Management took actions seriously by setting up a
Credit Risk Department to analyze the credit and to issue other regulations
to control the credit department separated from the collection department
and assigning the purchasing people to monitor the inventories closely.
Furthermore, the Management assigned the special group people to set
up the second hand market for all reverted stocks especially motorcycles.
In order to increase efficiency and accuracy in the Company’s operation
and to serve the customers more efficiently, the Company have invested
in IT system named IFS as well as implemented the management tool
named Balanced Scorecard to monitor and evaluate the performance in
every function in the Company.

The above shows that the Company was able to operate
effectively and efficiently amid heavy competition in the market and the
Company would conduct its business with good governance principles
so as to cope effectively with the uncertainty.
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Audit Fee
1.) Audit Fee

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the audit fees
were paid by the Company and the subsidiaries to :-

- The KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. with the amount of
Baht 1,119,000.

- Other audit firms or other persons who have any rela-
tionship with the KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. with the amount
of Nil.

2.) Non-Audit Fee

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the non-audit
fees such as audit of the Registered Provident Fund for Singer’s
Staffs’ financial statement, the Company’s US Reporting
Package for US GAAP Professional fees, and the Feasibility
Study and Revenue Recognition Review of Consumer Finance
& Hire Purchase were paid by the Company, and Singer Asia
Limited to :-

- The KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. with amount of Baht
780,000.

- Other firms related to the KPMG Phoomchai Audit
Ltd. with the total amount of Baht 400,000.
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seTagnaiuselvg) o Tun 26 ~snau 2547
Register of Shareholders as at August 26, 2004

o - nA iU % mawﬁuquﬁuv{%wm
Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares
1. SINGER (THAILAND) B.V. 129,600,000 48.00
23 U3 Inadudnens a1inm 27.969.710 10.36
THAI NVDR CO., LTD.
3. FUNANT N NTINE ANA WAL 13,489,000 5.00
KASIKORNBANK PCL.
4, NOUTIY Lﬁ'aéamu%qL'ﬂumum'w&'ﬁﬂmaamﬂuﬁuﬁumum. Taned 13,056,500 4.84

THAI TRUST FUND MANAGEMENT CO., LTD.

5. w3 Waslnasziulia 41in 5,400,000 2.00
MUANG THAI LIFE ASSURANCE CO., LTD.

6. nawuilla Waua A WanEN D aiius 4,448,000 1.65
PRIMAVEST SPECIFIC FLEXIBLE FUND

7. wedesml nanAnuun 4,360,000 1.61
MR. CHAIRAT PHALADIGANON

8. namuitln egseunalulad 4,184,000 1.55
AJF STAR TECHNOLOGY FUND

9. 130 egeen adaud 3.0, dezfudin 91in @viaw 3,870,800 1.43
AYUDHYA ALLIANZ C.P. LIFE PCL.

10. wedd Ta onpuaszi 3,382,000 1.25
MR. NITI OSATHANUKAO

1. s Quyu i 1A 9adin @) 3,000,000 1.11
TISCO FINANCE PCL.

12. we Viswas gl 2,340,000 0.87
MR. SUTHIPONG WETHVARUT

13 UNTUNY JaUNANAT 2,334,000 0.86
MRS. NANTHA RUNGNOPPHAKHUNSRI

14. weeTade ~uiedAa 2,120,000 0.79
MR. THAWATCHAI SEUBWONGLEE

15. BEAR, STEARNS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED-CUSTOMER REG.ACCOUNT 1,500,000 0.56

16. waaade ~UeAd 1,500,000 0.56
MR. THAWATCHAI SEUBWONGLEE

17. WL UAAansTUsiunsuInannaeny 1,383,770 051

H.M. KING BHUMIBOL ADULYADEJ
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ANZNTTUNTUAZE BT ANTS
Board of Directors & Management

21g) AU qANSANN 1lsy unsalvineudaunds 5 1 'iﬁmuﬁumﬂm?ﬁ’w?;ﬁﬂ
Age  Position Education Work Experience 5 years up  w Juil 31 susay
No. of Shares held
as at December 31
2547/2004  2546/2003
walsems ndeuvawdmil Usaluy * *** 71 13z8unssunn? - Worcester College, 2512 - 1aqiiu 76,500 7.650
Rear Admiral Mom Luang Usni Pramoj Chairman Oxford University, - Qﬁmmiwé‘wfu UNTERIA
England. 1969 - Present

- Gray’s Inn, London, - Manager

England. His Majesty Private Property
wEey unWvisn 1Aaa 57 NIIUNIEANMS - Faculty of Education, 1999 - Present 0 0
Mr. James Patrick Kelly Managing Director Leicester University, UK - Managing Director
Singer Thailand PCL.
1997 - 1999

- Regional Director
Inchcape Group, Thailand
wie Al e fauun 61 n95UN"S - MA and MPH degrees 2002 - Present 0 0
Mr. Stephen H. Goodman Director in economics, - Chairman, President & CEO
Yale University, USA Singer Corporation
1998 - 2001

- President & Chief Executive

Officer

The Singer Company
uelnlud  Tawal usd 42 N33UN"T - 1977-1981 South Currently 0 0
Mr. Tobias Josef Brown Director Eugene High School - Managing Director

- 1982-1986 Brandeis UCL Asia Limited
University, Waltham, - The Chairman
Massachusetts, USA A Member of the
Council of Foreign
Relations
The Nobel Group
- 1991 Board of Directors

General Oriental Investments

wigengng Yoilndmszga = oo 60 N33UNTT - Bachelor of Science 2544 - flaq1iu 0 0
Mr. Yongyut Boonpektrakul Director degree in - éﬁmﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬂ
Pharmaceutical 1A, Funadlszinalne

Chemistry, University =~ 2541 - 2544

of Santo Tomas - fanuenishenauaznsnan
Manila, Philippines 1. danaiszinalng

- Diploma in 2001 - Present

Management General Manager

Development Program, Singer Thailand PCL.

Asian Institute of 1998 - 2001
Management, - Sales & Marketing Director
Manila, Philippines Singer Thailand PCL.

34 genuLlszantl 2547
13N dunaddszinalng 91in @man)
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ﬂﬁq
Age
UERNENG qtytﬂn*ﬁnga 60
Mr. Yongyut Boonpektrakul
= .
uﬁﬂqmu YAREVUUI * *x xxx xxex 69
Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda
UNE 19T ANEY * xe xme 35

Mr. Sara Lamsam

UNE[A7 TANFAUN * == *or exs xxens 57

Mr. Pliu Mangkornkanok

AL
Position

NITUNIT

Director

NITUNIT

Director

NITUNIT

Director

NITUNIT

Director

QANSANE
Education

- Diploma in Financial
Management,

New York University,
New York, USA

- Bachelor Degree

in Accounting

- Bachelor Degree

in Commerce

Thammasat University

- Master of Science

in Administration
Boston University,
US.A.

- MBA (Finance),
University of California
at Los Angeles, USA

- MS

(Industrial Engineering),
Stanford University,
USA

- BE

(Industrial Engineering),
Chulalongkorn Univer-

sity, Bangkok

1Ag4 %ﬁamiaaﬁuuazmﬁmm?

1l3y unnsalvineudiaunds 5 1 '-hmuﬁ:ummu?ﬁwﬁﬁﬂ
o Fuil 31 funay
No. of Shares held
as at December 31

2547/2004

Work Experience 5 years up

2546/2003

A, 2542 - flaqiTu 0 0
- N39UN1T
1A, Fanasiszinalng
2542 - 2546
- N39UNNT
uwa. Fulsgfinesua Bldansa
Aug. 1999 - Present
- Director Singer Thailand PCL.
1999 - 2003
- Director
Sanyo Universal Electric PCL.
2547 - 1laq1Tu 0 0
- N9IUNTRTANTS
15t Weslnalsziuiia 910
2544 - 2546
- imnﬁmmsﬁ%ﬂms
139 1Waslnetlsziuain 9
2539 - 2543
- fanenssunsgannas
139 1Waslnetlsziuain 9
2004 - Present
- President Muang Thai Life
Assurance Co., Ltd.
2001 - 2003
- Executive Vice President
Muang Thai Life Assurance Co., Ltd.
1996 - 2000
- First Senior Vice President
Muang Thai Life Assurance Co., Ltd.
2544 - 11aq1Tu 0 0
- 19zauUN9sUNITLTMNIUAY
szaudmihiiusms
WnRuu 7 10 41in @i
2537 - 1.8l 2544
- NITUNITANUILINTG
WEnRuu 1 10 41in @i
2001 - Present
- Executive Chairman & CEO
TISCO Finance PCL.
1994 - Jun. 2001
- President & Director
TISCO Finance PCL.
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A UL
Age Position

anel
9

= T 73
uneilszinl w SRStyImun e 51 Hauienis

Mr. Prateep Saenghiranwathana Dil’lf;lﬁ'tﬁma:
N9
Controller
& Finance

Director

wneAnatl Loenaoy 55
Mr. Viphoch Chiewchan

gauaenis
tnernens
Sales Director,

Singer Direct

QANSANKN
Education

- Master Degree in
Management
National Institute of
Development
Administration

- Bachelor Degree
in Accounting

Chulalongkorn University

- Bachelor Degree

in Accounting

Chulalongkorn University

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT

X . . e A
sz unsalviieudiounds 5 1 SusuulesFEnide

Work Experience 5 years up o Fuil 31 funey
No. of Shares held
as at December 31

2547/2004  2546/2003

2546 - 11a1Tu 0 0

- fdhuwsenisthatliyduaznisdu

1A, Funaddszinealne
. 2545 - 6.7, 2545

- fhusennsthelid

1A, Funadlszinealne

0.8, 2544 - g1, 2545

- g usenisthenistu

1A, FRTNLNAuAsLszinAlne

1.7, 2535 - W.A. 2544

- NITUNNT LAY

fanuaenisehenistu

13N TNE / andl

@azwmelne) {911

2003 - Present

- Controller and Finance Director

Singer Thailand PCL.

Aug. 2002 - Dec. 2002

- Controller

Singer Thailand PCL.

Jun. 2001 - Jun. 2002

- Chief Financial Officer

Bata Shoe Company

of Thailand PCL.

Jan. 1992 - May. 2001

- Vice President - Finance / MIS

CPC / AJI (Thailand) Ltd.

W8 2547 - flaq1iu 0 3,000

- g usennstheunens

1A, Funadlszinealne

2546 -2547

- gannistheananssdanas

1A, Funadlszinealne

2545

- gamnschelasanisiivaw

1A, Funadlszinealne

2535 - 2544

= Qﬁ'ﬂmitﬁhﬂ“uﬁmLa:ﬂ%’Wﬁ“u

una. Funadlszinealne

Apr. 2004 - Present

- Sales Director, Singer Direct

Singer Thailand PCL.

2003 - 2004

- Singer Direct Manager

Singer Thailand PCL.

genuLlszantl 2547
13N dunaddszinalng 91in @man)
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Mr. Viphoch Chiewchan

e 873 gINTNA

Mr. Siam Uralwong

UNERYY  UIUNDY

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT

g AU
Age Position
55 gawaEnng
tnerneng
Sales Director,
Singer Direct
.
37 gduienns
Hnansnanm
Marketing
Director
37

Mr. Apimuk Sanamthong

QAMsANE
Education

- Master of International
Business
Administration - Major
Internation

Business

Nova Southeastern
University

Florida, U.S.A

- Bachelor of Business
Administration

(B.B.A) Major Marketing
Assumption University
(ABAC)

Certificate of Business
Administration,

St.Theresa

1Ag4 %ﬁamiﬁaﬁuua:mﬁmm?

13y unsalvineudeunds 5 1 ﬁ’ﬁu'nuﬁ:ummu?ﬁ’wﬁﬁa
a Fufl 31 $unau
No. of Shares held
as at December 31

2547/2004  2546/2003

Work Experience 5 years up

2002

- Manager of the System
Steering Group

Singer Thailand PCL.

1992 - 2001

- Credit & Collection Manager
Singer Thailand PCL.

W, 8. 2547 - 1aq1fu 0 0
- Q’a"ﬁu’mmiﬁwmimmm

una. dunaidszinalna

1.A. 2544 - 2547

- Ej’%’mmitﬂmmimmm

unA. dunaidszinalne

.61, 2540 - 2544

- fAnnTHARua

unA. dunaidszinalne

Apr. 2004 - Present

- Marketing Director

Singer Thailand PCL.

Dec. 2001 - 2004

- Marketing Manager

Singer Thailand PCL.

Jun. 1997 - 2001

- Product Manager - White Goods
Singer Thailand PCL.

n.&. 2547 - aq1iu 0 0
- Q’a”’mmmitﬂwﬁmmqaﬁ@
una. dunaidszinalne

2543 - N.A. 2547

- é’ﬁﬂu’]ﬂﬂ’ﬁtﬂ’mﬁmu’]’ﬁﬁmm:
NIAAIALTEN LaVnian
Wazmelng) 411in

Sep. 2004 - Present

- Business Development Director
Singer Thailand PCL.

2000 - Jul. 2004

- Commercial Director

Cetelem (Thailand) Ltd.

(A Subsidary of BNP

Paribas group)

yaneLus) (Note) 1

. * N99UN1FD 9 (Independent Director)

LY ARMZNIIUNN9MIIA Al (Audit Committee)
** ANIZNTIUNNIANNUAAIARLUNY (Remuneration Committee)

* ANENGTUNIS 9911 (Nominating Committee)

ST NN

e UNNTRLITUANN WAL 4L 38 antTunssunnsLdEmne (Director trained from Thai Institute of Directors)
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Organization : The structure of the Company’s organization consists of
the board of directors, the Audit Committee, the Nominating Committee,

the Remuneration Committee, and the Management team.

Scope of Functions and Responsibilities of the Company Directors

All directors of the Company shall perform their duties according
to the laws, the objects and articles of the Company that include the
resolutions of the Shareholders meetings in good faith and take care to
promote the interests of the company.

All the Board members shall consistently have accountability to
the Shareholders protect the interests of Shareholders. Additionally,
information should be clearly, honestly and fully disclosed Shareholders.

The Board of Directors shall also be responsible for ensuring that
the Management team is conducting the operations of the Company in
accordance with the policy set forth by its Major Shareholder company,
namely Singer (Thailand) B.V. The Company affidavit has shown the
names of duly authorized directors who is empowered to sign on behalf
of the Company and perform all the activities which bind the Company
including litigation, defending in legal proceedings, exercising other rights
in court, performing juristic acts and certifying documents. The Board
not only appoints but also reserved the right to revise the names of duly
authorized directors of the Company. To ensure efficiency in Management
functions, the Company’s Board of Directors has to delegate the

Management team to run and manage the Company’s business.

Appointment of Company Directors

Since the structure of the Company’s organization is not
complicated, the Company has the policy to appoint sub-directors to fit
the job occasionally. It has been found out that decision making of the
various departments can be done efficiently thus the Company Directors
and Management team will recruit candidates according to needs,
experience and competency for nomination to the Shareholders at the
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for voting to fill up the
vacancy, as one in three of the directors shall take turns to quit from the
position of the company director. Procedures governing the voting and
appointment of the Company Directors are as follows:

1. Each Shareholder shall have one vote for each share.

2. Each Shareholder may exercise all the votes he has under [1],

elect of several persons as directors but he may not allot votes to

any such person at any numbper.

3. The persons who receive the highest votes in their respective

one of the votes shall be selected as director at the number

equal to the number of directors of the company. In the event

of equal votes among the persons elected in order of respective

high numbers of votes, which exceed the number of directors of

the company, election shall be made by casting vote of the Chairman.

As part of the Company’s good corporate governance, in the Board
of Directors Meeting no.156, the Meeting resolved and approved the
appointment of nominating committee members to be responsible for
preparing names of individuals to become directors or chairman by using

a transparent standard before submitting it for consideration to the board
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of directors or shareholders meeting and remuneration committee members
to be responsible for studying in details of remuneration policy and determine
remuneration of directors and committee members to propose to the

board of directors for consideration.

Director and Management Remuneration in Year 2004
Details are shown in Note 10 in the report of The Principles of

Good Corporate Governance.

Use of Inside Information for Personal Gain
Details are shown in Note 6 in the report of The Principles of

Good Corporate Governance.

Internal Control

At the 156th Company Directors meeting, attended by Audit
Committee members, is held on 25 February 2005. Discussions include
evaluation of the Audit Committee Reports and exclusive questioning
from the directors. The meeting can be summarized as follows: The
Board of Directors and Audit Committee members held the same opinion

in all discussion matters.

Report of The Principles of Good Corporate Governance
1. Policy On Corporate Governance

The Company’s Board of Directors set out a policy on corporate
governance in order to enhance transparency of the Company’s
operations and achieve greater confidence of shareholders, investors and
other related parties. The board is committed to the principles of good
governance by recognizing the importance of control and internal audit
systems and ensuring that the Management implements the Company’s
policies efficiently and to the best interests of the shareholders within

legal requirements and business ethics.

2. Rights Of Shareholders

The Board of Directors of the Company has assured that
shareholders are treated equally. In 2004, the Company held one annual
general meeting of shareholders to enable them to consider and vote on
matters relating to the Company’s operations as specified by law. The
agenda was sent to all shareholders in advance so that they could have
enough time to review the directors’ opinion and information provided in
each agenda. Venue of the meeting was carefully chosen to make it
convenient for shareholders to attend and exercise their rights. Proxy
form was also provided in a notice calling shareholders’ meeting in order
that a shareholder could authorize another person to attend the meeting
and vote on his/her behalf if he/she wished. Minutes of the shareholders’
meeting were properly taken and kept for reference.

Except the right to vote on matters relating to the Company’s
operations in Shareholders’ Meeting, all Shareholders have the right to
get the dividend on the Company’s net profit after tax not over 75% as
the Company’s dividend policy. The dividend will be paid on the first half
and second half of the Company’s performance as shown in the Financial
Note no. 16.

Annual Report 2004
Singer Thailand Public Co., Itd
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT

3. Stakeholders’ Rights

It is the policy of the Company that all stakeholders’ rights and
interest are adequately protected, be it internal stakeholders, namely the
Company’s staff and executives including its subsidiaries or external
stakeholders’ namely customers, creditors, related government agencies
and other parties. The reason is that the Company realizes that our
stakeholders’ support is needed to strengthen its competitiveness and
maximize profits in the long run. Thus, the Company complies with the
relevant laws as well as rules and regulations in order to effectively cover

its stakeholder’s rights.

4, Shareholders’ Meeting

The shareholders’ meeting was called and conducted in accordance
with the provisions laid down by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Six
directors of the Company attended the previous shareholders’ meeting.
Some directors were absent due to their engagements abroad while
other directors who represented the major shareholders were domiciled
in the USA. Nevertheless, they all received the agenda including other
related information for review. Those who always attended the shareholders’
meeting included the Chairman of the board, Chairman of audit committee,
Managing Director, General Manager, Controller and Finance Director as
well as external auditors as they were willing to answer any questions
raised by the shareholders. In all the shareholders’ meetings, the Chairman
of the meeting allowed sufficient time for the shareholders to express
their views and/or ask any questions concerning the agenda and other
Company’s business. Queries and comments made by the participants of

shareholders’ meeting were also recorded in the minutes of such meeting.

5. Leadership and Vision

The Company’s directors are obliged to perform their duties in
accordance with applicable laws, objects and articles of associations
including the shareholders’ meeting resolutions in good faith and with
proper care to promote the Company’s best interests. Directors are also
accountable to the Company’s shareholders and ensure full disclosure of
accurate and complete information to the investors. The Company’s
directors observe the Code of Best Practice for Directors of Listed Com
Currently, while the Company’s major shareholder - Singer (Thailand)
B.V. has a say in the direction of the Company’s operations, the Board of
Directors supervises the Management to ensure that the policies and
strategies laid down by the Company have been put into practice and
that the Management has implemented effective control and reporting
systems to monitor the Company’s performance. The board reviews the

Company’s operating results in board meetings.

6. Conflict Of Interests
Following are the measures worked out by the Company to pre-
vent the conflict of interests and insider abuses:-
® [tems that may lead to conflict of interests will be considered
thoroughly by the Board of Directors and based on the applicable provi-
sions of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Company has presented
the said items in its annual report and Form 56-1.
® Insider abuses
- Executives of the Company are required to report any change in

their securities holding to the Securities Exchange Commission and the
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Stock Exchange of Thailand as per Article 59 of Securities and Exchange
Act (B.E. 2535).

- Executives or other personnel are not allowed to abuse inside
corporate information and refrain from trading the Company’s securities
within one month prior to the Company’s financial statements going
public.

7. Business Ethics

The Board of Directors, Management and all employees of the
Company have been issued a handbook of the Code of Business Ethics
so that all could apply such guidelines in their work and in dealing with
other stakeholders, the Company and the public. The Company will

regularly follow up the results of such practices.

8. Board Composition

The Board of Directors of the Company is made up of nine persons:
two directors representing major shareholders, three executive directors
and four independent directors. The number of independent directors
sitting in the board accounts for one-third of the board and thus strikes
a fair balance in the board’s composition. Two of the following three
directors’ signatures namely Mr. James Patrick Kelly, Mr. Yongyut
Boonpektrakul and Mr. Prateep Saenghiranwathana, with the seal of the

Company, will represent and legally bind the Company.

9. Aggregation or Segregation of Positions

The board chairman is an independent director (by definition of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand) and is not related to Management
members. The chairman is not the same person who holds Managing
Director position in the Company. While the board is responsible for
formulating the Company’s policies and charting a direction, it is

Management who engages the day-to-day operations of the Company.

10. Remuneration of Directors and Management

Directors’ remuneration : The Company’s directors receive rela-
tively reasonable remuneration. The shareholder’s meeting approves the
remuneration of the directors. Directors who serve in the Audit Commit-
tee also receive additional remuneration accordingly.

Management’s remuneration : Remuneration of the Management
has been in line with the policy established by Singer Corporation (the
Company’s major shareholder of 48%) and commensurate with the
Company’s business performance and individual work performance.

In year 2004, the Company paid remuneration for Directors and

Management as follows:

1. Monetary Remuneration

Position Year 2004 Year 2003

Rear Admiral M.L. Usni Pramoj | Chairman of the Board 350,000 250,000
Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda Director 350,000 225,000
Mr. Pliu Mangkornkanok Director 350,000 200,000
Mr. Sara Lamsam Director 350,000 200,000

Total 1,350,000 875,000

Note : Management acting as a director does not get any remuneration

Annual Report 2004
Singer Thailand Public Co., Itd
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT

Management is Remuneration Fee

= TR
No.  Amount No. Amount
(Baht) (Baht)
Management team members
(Salary, Bonus and Incentive) 6 21,068,289 5 18,838,399
2. Other Remuneration
= TR
No.  Amount No. Amount
(Baht) (Baht)
@ Provident Fund contribution
paid by the Company to
Management term members 4 515,192 4 415,792

11. Board Meetings

Board meetings are normally held every quarter to review the
Company’s business. However, an extra board meeting can be called if
necessary. Before each board meeting, all directors will be sent a written
notice together with the agenda and other related documents. All directors
are free to express their opinions in the meeting. In year 2004, there were

four board meetings that included the following participants:-

Term of service Attendance in Meeting/

Total Board Meeting
1. Rear Admiral M.L. Usni Pramoj ~ Apr. 04 - Apr. 07 3/4
2. Mr. James P. Kelly Apr. 03 - Apr. 06 4/4
3. Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda Apr. 02 - Apr. 05 4/4
4. Mr. Pliu Mangkornkanok Apr. 04 - Apr. 07 3/4
5. Mr. Sara Lamsam Apr. 02 - Apr. 05 3/4
6. Mr. Yongyut Boonpektrakul Apr. 04 - Apr. 07 4/4
7. Mr. Prateep Saenghiranwathana Apr. 03 - Apr. 06 4/4
8. Mr. Stephen H. Goodman* Apr. 02 - Apr. 05 1/4
9. Mr. Tobias Josef Brown* Apr. 03 - Apr. 06 2/4

* Note: @ Directors represent the major shareholders and reside in
the USA and Hong Kong.

The minutes of board meetings including points raised by the
directors in the meeting are properly taken and kept at the Companys

head office for reference.

12. Sub-Committee

Audit Committee : Set up to assist the Board of Directors on
August 6, 1999 with a two-year term, the Audit Committee comprises of
3 members (all are independent directors) as follows:-

Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda Chairman Non-executive

Mr. Pliu Mangkornkanok Member Non-executive

Mr. Sara Lamsam Member Non-executive

In 2004, the Audit Committee held four meetings altogether.
Reporting to the Company’s Board of Directors, the Audit Committee has
the following functions and responsibilities:-

1) To review the Company’s financial reports and comment on its
preparation process and disclosure of information therein with regard to

its accuracy, completeness and credibility.
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2) To ensure proper and effective control and internal audit system in
the Company and comment on its adequacy in the Company’s annual report.

3) To review the appointment of external auditor of the Company.

4) To comment on compliance by the Company with relevant
laws, rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

5) To consider items which may lead to conflict of interests.

6) To perform other work assigned by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

Remuneration Committee : Set up on May 16, 2003, the committee
has 3 members as follows :-

1. Mr. Pliu Mangkornkanok

2. Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda

Chairman Non-executive
Member Non-executive

3. Mr. Yongyut Boonpektrakul Member Executive

The remuneration committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration of the Board of Directors and making recommendation(s)
accordingly.

Since the structure of the Company’s organization is not very
complex, the Board of Directors and Management team together with
Audit Committee are able to effectively and efficiently handle all matters
of the Company including the selection of directors, if need arises.

Nominating Committee : Set up on 25 February 2005 in the Board

th
of Directors Meeting no.156 , the Committee members were appointed

as follows :

1. Rear Admiral M.L. Usni Pramoj Chairman Non-executive
2. Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda Member Non-executive
3. Mr. Pliu Mangkornkanok Member Non-executive

All the above Committee members are Independent Directors who
have the responsibilities for preparing names of individuals to become
directors or chairman by using a transparent standard before submitting
it for consideration to the board of directors or shareholders meeting and
remuneration committee members to be responsible for studying in details of
remuneration policy and determine remuneration of directors and committee
members to propose to the board of directors for consideration.

Qualifications of Independent Directors : as the Company’s criteria
of appointment of independent directors were approved in the 156th
Board of Directors Meeting and were disclosed in the Company’s annual
report are as follows.

® Holding not more than 5% of the number of all voting shares in
the Company, or its parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates, or juristic
persons that may be in conflict (including related persons under Section
258 of the securities law).

@ Taking no part in the management, and not being an employee,
advisor earning regular salary or a person who has control power over
the Company, or its parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates, or juristic
persons that may be in conflict, provided that he or she must not have
had an interest in the said manner for not less than one year.

® Having no business relationship, i.e. borrowers or creditors of the
Company, or its parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates, no benefit or
interest, directly or indirectly, in the finance and management of the
Company, or its parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates, or juristic persons
that may be in conflict that would cause a lack of independence in using
his or her opinion unless the board of directors of the Company, after due
consideration, deemed that such relationship will not affect the independent

performance and opinion of the independent directors.
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT

® Not being a related person by blood, by legal registration, i.e.
father, mother, spouse, brother or sister, son or daughter including their
spouse of any executive, major shareholders, a person who has control
power over the Company or a person who will be appointed as executive

or a person who has control power over the Company or its subsidiaries.

13. Control and Internal Audit Systems

® Both Internal Audit and Legal Affairs Departments are assigned
the responsibility of monitoring the Company’s operations whether it is
in compliance with the laws and other requirements including the
objectives of the Company.

o The Management holds regular and frequent meetings to review
the Company’s business performance in terms of sales, receivables, and

other problems, which arise and need corrective action.

14. Report by The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s financial
statements and other information as shown in the annual report. Such
financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally -
accepted accounting standards and other reporting requirements, and
also significant information to support the financial statements which are
adequately provided.

The Audit Committee has been assigned to comment on the
quality of financial reports and effectiveness of the control system in the
Audit Committee’s report, which also goes into the Company’s annual report.

The Board of Directors thought that control and internal audit
systems of the Company has proven satisfactory and hence the
Consolidated and Company Financial Statements as at December 31,

2004 presented accurate and reliable information.

15. Investor Relations

The Company’s Investor Relations Unit was set up to serve as a
link between the Management and the shareholders, investors, securities
analysts and other related parties in terms of communication channel
and disclosure of information, and to ascertain that the Company
complies with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act as well
as other relevant laws. In preceding years, the financial reports and other
information submitted by the Company have been found as accurate,
complete and timely.

For corporate information, all shareholders, investors, securities
analysts and other interested parties can contact the Company’s Investor

Relations Unit at website www.singerthai.co.th or e-mail address:

supatrap@singerthai.co.th
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AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT
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AUDIT COMMITTEE’'S REPORT

The Audit Committee of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited consists of three independent non-executive members
as follow:

Mr. Udom Chatiyanonda  Chairman
Mr. Pliu Mangkornkanok  Member
Mr. Sara Lamsam Member

Mr. Paitoon Sukhanaphorn serves as a Secretary to the Audit Committee. All members of the Audit Committee are
qualified based on the standard of requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The Audit Committee have been assigned by the Board of Directors to be held responsible in overseeing the Company’s
& Consolidated Financial Reports and financial transactions as such that they comply with standardized business accounting
practices, thus, ensuring that the Financial Reports are presented fairly in accordance with accounting principles and that the
Company is efficiently managed. Furthermore, the Committee have to ensure that the Securities and Exchange Acts are
complied with together with proper and adequate disclosure of pertinent documents, to appoint the External Auditors for the
Company and other undertakings as instructed by the Board in order to recognize and abide with corporate virtues of Best
Practices, transparency and accountability.

During the year 2004, the Audit Committee held four meetings together with the Internal and the External Auditors, the
Management Team and Board of Directors to ensure that the Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, and that significant transactions are properly recorded, adequately disclosed
and presented in compliance with correct accounting principles. The Committee reported all of the Committee meetings to the
Board, the main points of which are summarized below:

To review the Quarterly and Year-End Financial Reports before submitting to the Board of Directors.

e To consider the provision for the obsolete inventories in order to provide the valued advices to the Company’s Management.
e Follow up the Company’s recognition of the interest earned from hire purchase and personal loans business in
e accordance with relevant laws and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand (SEC).
Follow up the setting-up of Singer Employee Cooperative.
e Follow up the Company’s progression of IT project (IFS).
e Monitoring the inactive subsidiaries and advised the Company to close the accounts.
e Also assign the Internal Auditors to follow up and participate with the above IT project.
e Review and advise the Internal Auditors to improve their performance.
e For the year 2005, the Audit Committee have proposed to the Board Of Directors to appoint KPMG Phoomchai Audit

Limited as the Company’s External Auditor for another year at the shareholders’ meeting.

Dated February 21, 2005.
On Behalf of the Audit Committee

%,, %‘
Mr.Udom Chatiyanonda

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the company’s
financial statements and other information as shown in the
annual report. Such financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the generally - accepted accounting principles
and other reporting requirements, Significant information to

support the financial statements are also adequately provided.

The Audit Committee has been assigned to comment
on the quality of financial reports and effectiveness of the
control system in the Audit Committee’s report, Which is also

included in the Company’s annual report.

The Board of Directors conclude that control and internal
audit systems of the Company has proved satisfactory. Hence,
the Consolidated and Company Financial Statements as at
December 31, 2004 presented accurate and reliable

information.

M. U T—‘j

Rear Admiral M.L. Usni Pramoj

Chairman of the Board

James P. Kelly

Managing Director
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salhArdanig

Usmelae - - 446,724 518,841

Fa udn

Usmelae - - 3,426,947 100,067

ﬁﬁﬂﬂi‘ﬁ Lﬁlﬂﬁmﬁugu 87,782,435 30,605,807 87,782,435 30,605,807

Fa unindnns

Ustmelae - - - 24,399,906

pentitdne

UsTMeiaE - - 993,588 2,670,005
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fansiinendaatuau 3.232,875 4,535,181 3,232,875 4,535,181
sgnuiifanisiifeadasiu 3,232,875 4,535,181 3263612 4,535,181
RUAEANNTINAY UAN

fansiinendasnuau 5,055,465 - 5,055,465 -
$IURUINEAWNTINAY " UAN 5,055,465 - 5,055,465 -
W¥ntnIgAN

ofu 'aumﬁwmaammm%mﬁnwﬁﬂum@a)
fansiinendastuau 5,134,414 3,021,555 5,134,414 3,021,555
FIURIMUNITAN 5,134,414 3,021,555 5,134,414 3,021,555
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13Enelag - - 1,674,161 44,049,208
gneviuseing 43,045,971 23,431,175 43,045,971 23,431,175
s wmtinannsAnedasiu 43,045,971 23,431,175 44,720,132 67,480,383
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UFHelas

13T 18 . 7. uaa. daalnsla” A1fn

Gotaz 99.84 UaNUAANZITEL) = - . 18,900,000
sutulvigeusas “u - - = 18,900,000
Qufjtiuszes *

@mmaniedesas 4 fell)
U3Emelae
LT 9, wingsuTaunes @szinalne) 91in

oAz 99.88 UBNUIANZILEL) = - 7.000,000 23,383,000
PRufiuszez "y - - 7,000,000 23,383,000
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a9suilaunisldiasamnannsfnsananlngmuinainiesas 0.1 adRAe e LNz UL A 0 amsne “Singer” winiu

vanlFasunulu “tyin1susnneiu The Singer Company B.V. VNLﬂumaawuﬁmmLmuﬁl,umwﬂi“mﬁ YALLUALBINITLENNTLEEMA A5
daYanuiuNITRaIA N9INUNL NTBNULL INUNLEARTIT uaz auﬁ 13 AnasTiazaneAmAnedenaniseduinaniesay 1 909
HanINe 15

ieuit 23 NINNIAL 2546 The Singer Company B.V. 15 TaunnesneAnessulennnel iAo mnanisduaz et nns L Sy
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qnviidaudnszuazgnuilau w Juil 31 funau dsznaudae
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UN1TRUTIY JUN1TRURNIZLTEN

gnuiitauinszuazgnwilau 5959251026 4920922874 5958764259 4919542613

Wn panuaLinTasaAmTn (1511,418469) (1,154,372,569)  (1,511,418,469) (1,154,372,569)
37U 4,447,832,557  3,766,550,305  4,447,345790  3,765,170,044
vin Anitenil SRCER (617.269.991)  (523,120,660)  (617.269.991)  (522.956,560)
saugnwﬁﬁauﬁwmngnwﬁﬁu - 8 3.830,562,566 3243429745 3830075799 3242213484

1%

gangnuiiauinszaavae Tnauanmudruiuaeundnds: u Juil 31 funau dsznaudos
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JUNN9RUTIY UNNTRUQNIZLTEN
L I A
teanividamiaiy 3 1hau 3364659966 2950377341  3,364,173,199  2.949,162,129
1NN 3 LABU D 6 Lhau 298,071,208 145,042,392 298,071,208 145,042,392
NN 6 LABU TN 12 1hau 197,056,024 88,140,584 197,056,024 88,140,584
1NN 12 ety 75,084,436 47,480,774 75,084,436 47,315,725
Eoty 3934,871,634 3231041091 3934384867  3,229,660,830
@‘ﬂwﬁﬁﬂ%’uimq Sami] 43,258,913 43,458,913 43,258,913 43,458,913
oty 3.978,130,547  3.274,500,004  3977.643,780  3273,119,743
sin Adlenil SRR (233,170,000) (148,304,000 ~_ (233,170,000) _ (148,140,000)
muqnwﬁciamhs: - g 3,744960,547  3,126,196,004  3,744,473,780  3,124.979,743

gangnuiiauaanads w un 31 funau Usznaudie
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JUNMTEUTIY JUNTRUANIZLTEN
e
anﬁ‘éu 142,531,807 144,465,234 142,531,807 144,465,234
gnwﬁwﬁnmumm 327,170,203 347,585,067 327,170,208 _ 347,585,067
Rty 469.702010 492,050,301 469,702010 492,050,301
sin Adlenil SRR (384,099.99T) _ (374.816,560) _ (384,099.991) _ (374.816,560)
mugnwﬁéu - g 85,602,019 117,233 741 85602019 _ 117,233,741
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a o

a v <~ s v
UANANLAGD U TUN 31 FunAu Usznaumie
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JUNTRUTIY JUNTRURNIZLEEN

T AP - 1,776,836 - -

azlva ulsznay 49,532,045 52,308,844 49532045 48,348,080
“udn Fagul 738940487 407254020 738940487 _ 407,592,529
et 788472532 461339700 788472532  455940,609
din Anufle ud sunmaw uaz evne (84,000000) _ (53,500,000) _ (84,000,000) _ (48,000,000)
P UAANVAD - NE 704,472,532 407,839,700 _ 704,472,532 _ 407,940,609
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1M
ANETANL A uRuamu g ANUAE U
szianianig “usug Nudszud Gaeaz) 1A MU 10
U3tielag
138 9m wnssu uned NAR~UAN 13Enelag 5,000,000 99.88 4994000 8,174,859 77,407,000
wazwmlng)y a1in
13 Fanad dusanad) 4 uneutihang 13tinean 200,000 99.70 199,400 2,711,457 57,327,500
sz iuTin
TU 5,193,400 10,886,316 134,734,500
L?uamu%dﬁ'uﬁﬂimﬁ% Ul el usunnsRuannzIsEn w Fui 31 Sunnau 2546 Usznaudie
M
AnsnzAY “n ulduasu AR ANLAT U
lszinnianisg “uwus Nudszud Gata) $1AMU 1h e Rutluna
U3Enelae
L3 gn mnssu Faned NAM UAY Utinean 5,000,000 99.88 4994000 18378011 59,928,000
@azmdlng) i
U3 Tanad dusained) 41in UNEUTINNE U3tneas 200,000 99.70 199,400 43,432,956 13,958,000
19z uTIn

13 18 7 uea Aanalnsila” e uAn L3Eelag 5,000,000 99.84 4,992,000 - -
1A
T 10,185,400 61,810,967 73,886,000

v
o @

Litees 138 10 71 uea Bianlnsa " a1iin agszvinnisdissiind Mluwnis@u wiull"u aiun 31 funeu 2547 Adlllaiuiin
Juamu Tneds il
8. Ruawuszazenddu

Ruawuszezenddu o Jui 31 funnau dsznaume
1M

JUNMTRUTIY JUNNTRURNIZLEEN

d‘ldl -~ o
AT 19vNAzDaIUATLiIILA
wEnunu 1 18 4fin @ 1,000,000 1,000,000 . -

muﬁumvgui:ﬂ:mﬁu 1,000,000 1,000,000 = -

da - -
9. AU BIANT LLﬁzqﬂﬂim - g

4 da e e oA ve X
malasunlasasiny 01ae wazgunenl mIUT U ATun 31 Funnau 2547 U AglAGall
U

ganAuvaanull Ta/A1 " ausmn ave/dniyd laudih/ aan  aanpuv@slanedl

i"lﬂﬁ‘i{!ﬂ
finuuas 'auﬂ‘fuﬂ@qﬁau 191,448,552 - (29,527 ,370) - 161,921,182
‘widstifusaniiy 127,705,768 - (36,264,450) - 91,441,318
AU 'quﬂ%uﬂgqﬁ‘au 319,154,320 - (65.791.820) - 253,362,500
21AT 272,040,666 - (10,227,486) - 261,813,180
ufnlgeanans 151,506,394 2,956,230 (23,785,604) 6,868,738 137,545,758
wizedld “ineuuazgiinaal 141,436,109 7.699.187 (35.937.949) 9,332,235 122,529,582
NUTTNINNG 519 - 12,671,836 - (6,868,738) 5,803,098
Tusunsuszvinaiinga - 23,118,272 - (9.332,235) 13,786,037
39U 884,137,489 46,445,525 (135,742,859) - 794,840,155
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STall
tanAIVAALL oA aumm ave/daid  lawdn/ san  saaaunaailaded
Anausm 2 u
27A"9 141,406,799 13,096,362 (15,422,557) - 139,080,604
qufulgeanans 81,493,192 22,186,107 (15,858,863) - 87,820,436
el "inaunazgingel 117,496,404 10,656,948 (35,620,081) - 92,533,271
991 340,396,395 45,939,417 (66.901,501) - 319,434,311
AP T
fiuuay nalsnlgeiipu 319,154,320 - - - 253,362,500
87A19 130,633,867 - - - 122,732,576
ulfunlgeenans 70,013,202 - - - 49,725,322
wsadld inenuuazglngl 23,939,705 . . - 29,996,311
NUTZVEINND TN - - - - 5,803,098
Tsunsusswinaiinga - - - - 13,786,037
99U 543,741,094 - ; } 475,405 844

o

AL BUTIAN INUIURY 45.94 EULNNUAZ 45.67 Buun muusazll U aTun 31 Funnau 2547 uaz 2546 awanau Thn aslinels
AldanglunsnenazLsnng Auasu

o4 e e oai e A 4o A v v e

W AU 31 SunAL 2647 uaz 2546 saAENUITIINEUTNANL BUSIAN T UUBNRIANTIATLUNTOl TNnA1L BUTIAINILILLAY uRE

pdldeuagiuduintu 11028 Suuuas 74.80 EMULM AIUEIGL

umn
AUNTRURNIZLTEN

ganAuviannull T0/AN1"ausAn qnLne/Aniya lawdn/ aan  sannuvidelansdl
71ANU
fiduuas uilFunlgediau 191,448 552 - (29,527,370) - 161,921,182
Juitszifiusaiia 127,705,768 - (36.,264,450) - 91,441,318
swfipuney ululgeiou 319,154,320 - (65.791.,820) - 253,362,500
8119 262,513,180 - (700,000) - 261,813,180
uilfunlgeanans 161,068,056 2.956,230 (23,347,266) 6,868,738 137,545,758
wsadldf tinauuazgingel 124,691,051 7,699,187 (19.192,891) 9,332,235 122,529,582
NusznIng $19 - 12,671,836 - (6,868.,738) 5,803,098
Tsunsuszwinainss - 23,118,272 - (9.332,235) 13,786,037
7 857,426,607 46,445,525 (109.031,977) - 794,840,155
A ausan = u
8119 126,562,939 13,096,362 (568,697) - 139,080,604
qufulgeanans 81,054,853 22,186,107 (15.420,524) - 87,820,436
wiadld tinanuuazgineol 100,811,280 10,561,925 (18,829.934) - 92,633,271
7 308,419,072 45,834,394 (34.819.155) - 319.434,311
1A ATy
fiduuas ulFunlgediau 319,154,320 - - - 253,362,500
81A19 135,960,241 - - - 122,732,576
ulfuilgenans 70,013,203 - - - 49,725,322
wiadld ineunazgngel 23,879.771 - - - 29,996,311
NusznINng ¥ - - - - 5,803,098
Iﬂi‘LLﬂi‘lli‘SWll’]\iaﬂgl‘jﬁ - - - - 13,786,037
27U 549,007,535 - - 475,405,844
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9. #iu anAns uwazquneal - vg G

AL 199AN T1UILIEY 45.83 EuLMIAY 44.68 &L wFuuAasT U qm;‘fu'ﬁ' 31 funAu 2547 uaz 2546 1Al aslinnalamnldane
TunsUBuaTLEMT AUaNAL

0 AU 31 FunAu 2547 uay 2546 snAALTiyEReUTInANL BN ¢ urasaATuazgLinal A ausaTuILLE uAdd
pdldeagiuduintu 11028 Suuuas 74.80 EMULM AIUENGL
10. Ciul;ﬁnLﬁuﬁ’ty%ua:ﬁuﬁﬁmzﬂz:uf-nﬂ oN1TUN1TRY

Rudnifuiliuas Sudiusze: “uan onfunslu w Jui 31 funay dsznaudos

U
JUNN9RUTIY JUNNTRULANIZUTEN
SudnifurToyd 22,369,222 10,212,309 22,369,222 10,212,309
uffluszes e onffunsdu 495000000 500000000 _ 495000000 _ 500,000,000
suRuinifudyuazRuty
sz “uaan ontfunnedu 517,369,222 510,212,309 517,369,222 510.212,309
L?ul,ﬁnLﬁuﬁ’m%uazﬁuﬁam:mzufv’m ontiunneRuiuudlifivandsiu
1. ﬁuﬁﬁm:ﬂ:m's'ﬁ'u ST
ﬁuﬁﬁmwzmaﬁlu W AU 31 Funen dsvneudoe
i
JUNNTRUTILY SUNNTIRUQNIZUTEN
Ruiiinan onfunnetu 1524670000 749991000 1524670000 749,991,000
fuaniiusrezeam 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000
371 1,624,670,000 849,991,000 1624670000 849,991,000
9N IQU‘H@\?W&QU?ZH’H
fitarinvundnsznnglunild (723.818,184) _ (383,641000) _ (723.818,184) _ (383,641,000)
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited and subsidiaries
as at December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statement of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows
for the year then ended and the separate financial statements of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited for the year then
ended. The management of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited is responsible for the correctness and completeness of
information presented in these financial statements. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audits. The accompanying consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements of Singer
Thailand Public Company Limited for the year ended December 31, 2003, were audited by another auditor whose report dated

February 13, 2004, expressed an unqualified opinion.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those Standards require that I plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited and subsidiaries as at December 31,
2004, the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended and the separate financial
position, results of operations and cash flows of Singer Thailand Public Company Limited for the year then ended, in conformity

with generally accepted accounting principles.

(Santi Pongjareanpit)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 4623

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
February 11, 2005
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BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003 BALANCE SHEETS

SINGER THAILAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS In Baht

Consolidated The Company Only
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 163,990,507 127,516,384 151,024,428 125,302,914
Installments and others receivable - net 3,6 3,830,662,566  3,243,429,74b  3,830,076,799  3,242,213,484
Amount due from related parties 4 3,232,875 4,535,181 3,263,612 4,535,181
Short-term loans to related party 4 = - = 18,900,000
Inventories - net 3,6 704,472,532 407,839,700 704,472,532 407,940,609
Prepayment for inventories 4 17,842,547 1,303,799 17,842,547 1,303,799
Other current assets 44,826,431 19,497,437 44,639,784 18,829,682
Total Current Assets 4,754,927,458  3,804,122,246  4,751,318,702  3,819,025,669
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments recorded by the equity method 3,7 = - 10,886,316 61,810,967
Other long-term investment 3,8 1,000,000 1,000,000 - -
Property, plant and equipment - net 3,9 475,405,844 543,741,094 475,405,844 549,007,535
Prepaid rent 43,248,806 48,120,399 43,248,806 48,120,399
Intangible asset 3 5,771,364 7,075,320 5,771,364 7,075,320
Other non-current assets 13,310 147,421 13,310 147,421
Total Non-Current Assets 525,439,324 600,084,234 535,325,640 666,161,642
TOTAL ASSETS 5,280,366,782  4,404,206,480  5,286,644,342  4,485,187,311

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from

financial institutions 10 517,369,222 510,212,309 517,369,222 510,212,309
Trade accounts payable 3,4 331,786,896 218,232,137 329,671,933 215,501,840
Amount due to related parties 4 43,045,971 23,431,175 44,720,132 67,480,383
Current portion of long-term loans 11 723,818,184 383,641,000 723,818,184 383,641,000
Short-term loans from related party 4 = - 7,000,000 23,383,000
Income tax payable 32,753,294 44,652,711 32,662,129 42,626,785
Accrued expenses 12 140,119,243 168,117,557 139,973,145 167,600,337
Advance received from sale of land = 16,914,825 = 16,914,825
Other current liabilities 10,779,099 15,243,929 10,734,724 15,211,355
Total Current Liabilities 1,799,671,909  1,380,445,643  1,805,949,469  1,442,571,834

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statments
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BALANCE SHEETS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

SINGER THAILAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Continued)

In Baht

Consolidated The Company Only
T s a0
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Liabilities arising from investments insubsidiaries 4 = - = 18,854,640
Other long-term loans 11 900,851,816 466,350,000 900,851,816 466,350,000
Provision for retirement cost 3 151,147,929 131,468,598 151,147,929 131,468,598
Employee security deposits 17,290,302 17,651,606 17,290,302 17,651,606
Provident funds 13 122,237,009 129,685,850 122,237,009 129,685,850
Other non-current liabilities - 2,358,440 - 2,358,440
Total Non-current Liabilities 1,191,527,056 747,514,494  1,191,627,056 766,369,134
Total Liabilities 2,991,198,965 2,127,960,137  2,997,476,525 2,208,940,968
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Authorized share capital:
270,000,000 common shares,
Baht 1 par value as at December 31, 2004
27,000,000 common shares,
Baht 10 par value as at December 31, 2003
Issued and paid-up share capital:
270,000,000 common shares,
Baht 1 par value as at December 31, 2004
27,000,000 common shares,
Baht 10 par value as at December 31, 2003 270,000,000 270,000,000 270,000,000 270,000,000
Premium on common shares 225,000,000 225,000,000 225,000,000 225,000,000
Other surpluses 3,9 91,441,318 127,705,768 91,441,318 127,705,768
Retained earnings:
Appropriated:
Legal reserve 27,000,000 27,000,000 27,000,000 27,000,000
Unappropriated 1,675,726,499  1,626,540,575  1,675,726,499 1,626,540,675
Total Shareholders' Equity 2,289,167,817  2,276,246,343  2,289,167,817 2,276,246,343
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 5,280,366,782  4,404,206,480  5,286,644,342 4,485,187,311

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statments
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STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003 STATEMENT OF INCOME

SINGER THAILAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF INCOME
In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
REVENUES 3
Sales 3,181,810,674 3,761,167,332  3,177,018,984 3,754,690,439
Interest from installment sales 1,066,570,006 787,844,006  1,066,570,006 787,844,006
Gain from sales of fixed assets 22,878,957 3,276,304 22,314,923 3,276,304
Other incomes 14,383,502 23,721,042 14,483,119 22,406,559
Share of profit from investments recorded
by the equity method = - 4,395,173 3,406,285
Total Revenues 4,285,643,039 4,676,007,684  4,284,782,205 4,571,622,593
EXPENSES 3
Cost of sales 2,368,943,5614  2,691,684,942  2,368,932,217 2,5692,330,100
Selling and administrative expenses 14,15 1,585,869,668 1,613,172,760  1,683,121,849 1,610,813,922
Total Expenses 3,954,803,172 4,204,857,702  3,952,054,066 4,203,144,022
Profit before Interest Expense and Income Tax 330,839,867 371,149,982 332,728,139 368,478,571
Interest Expense 43,234,088 31,349,071 44,227,676 32,657,023
Income Tax 3 103,419,855 99,718,023 104,314,539 95,738,660
NET PROFIT 184,185,924 240,082,888 184,185,924 240,082,388
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.68 0.89 0.68 0.89
The Weighted Average Number of
Common Shares (Shares) 270,000,000 270,000,000 270,000,000 270,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statments
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN SHAREHOLSERS" EQUITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

SINGER THAILAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

In Baht

Consolidated

Retained earnings

Issued and paid-
up/called-up  Premium on Other Appropriated-
Notes  share capital share capital  Surpluses legal reserve  Unappropriated Total

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2003 270,000,000 225,000,000 129,105,768 27,000,000  1,502,557,687  2,153,663,455
Other surpluses 3,9 - - (1,400,000) - - (1,400,000)
Net profit = - = - 240,082,888 240,082,888
Dividends paid 16 - - = - (116,100,000)  (116,100,000)
BALANCE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 270,000,000 225,000,000 127,705,768 27,000,000  1,626,540,5676  2,276,246,343
Other surpluses 3,9 = - (36,264,450) - - (36,264,450)
Net profit = - = - 184,185,924 184,185,924
Dividends paid 16 = - - - (135,000,000)  (135,000,000)
BALANCE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 270,000,000 225,000,000 91,441,318 27,000,000  1,675,726,499  2,289,167,817
In Baht
The Company Only
Retained earnings
Issued and paid-

up/called-up  Premium on Other Appropriated-
Notes  share capital share capital  Surpluses legal reserve  Unappropriated Total

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2003 270,000,000 225,000,000 129,105,768 27,000,000  1,502,557,687  2,163,663,455
Other surpluses 3,9 = - (1,400,000) - - (1,400,000)
Net profit = - = - 240,082,888 240,082,888
Dividends paid 16 - - = - (116,100,000)  (116,100,000)
BALANCE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 270,000,000 225,000,000 127,705,768 27,000,000  1,626,540,5675  2,276,246,343
Other surpluses 3,9 - - (36,264,450) - - (36,264,450)
Net profit - - = - 184,185,924 184,185,924
Dividends paid 16 - - = - (135,000,000)  (135,000,000)
BALANCE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 270,000,000 225,000,000 91,441,318 27,000,000  1,675,726,499  2,289,167,817

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statments
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SINGER THAILAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
2004 2003 2004 2003

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVIES

Net profit 184,185,924 240,082,888 184,185,924 240,082,888
Adjustment to reconcile net profit to net cash

used in operating activities

Depreciation 45,939,417 45,672,040 45,834,394 44,682,640
Other Amortisation 16,680,125 14,866,223 16,680,125 14,866,223
Allowance for doubtful accounts 94,295,431 26,155,544 94,313,431 26,769,297
(The excess of) allowance for obsolete and damaged inventories 30,500,000 (4,991,635) 36,000,000 (4,800,000)
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment (22,878,957) (3,265,177) (22,314,923) (3,275,304)
Unrealized loss on exchange rate 62,612 12,091 62,612 12,091
Provision for retirement cost 19,679,331 47,661,148 19,679,331 47,661,148
Share of profit from investments

recorded by the equity method - - (4,395,173) (3,406,285)
Profit from operations before change in operating assets and liabilities

Operating assets (increase) decrease 368,463,883 366,193,122 370,045,721 362,592,698
Installments and others receivable

Amount due from related parties (681,428,262)  (921,991,867)  (682,175,746) (922,648,622)
Inventories 1,302,306 (4,535,181) 1,271,569 (4,391,873)
Prepayment for inventories and other current assets (327,132,832) 97,090,511 (332,531,923) 99,680,766
Operating liabilities increase (decrease) (41,828,770) 7,786,605 (42,309,878) 7,265,056
Trade accounts payable 113,453,175 6,763,760 114,068,509 6,349,767
Amount due to related parties 19,614,796 12,250,645 (22,760,251) 644,399
Income tax payable (11,899,417) 18,784,199 (9,964,656) 36,325,018
Accrued expenses (28,324,884) 4,832,430 (27,898,347) 5,216,054
Other current liabilities (4,464,830) (4,460,170) (4,476,631) (4,377,572)
Other non-current liabilities (2,358,440) 2,358,440 (2,358,440) 2,358,440
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (694,603,265)  (414,927,506)  (639,090,073) (410,985,369)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments from short-term loans to related party - - - (850,000)
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment (46,445,525) (38,084,728) (46,445,525) (61,567,636)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 38,541,040 4,497,495 37,809,739 4,497,495
Payments for prepaid rent (10,386,855) (9,859,698) (10,386,855) (9,859,698)
Dividends received from subsidiaries - - 60,848,500 59,928,000
Payments for intangible assets (117,721) (7,075,320) (117,721) (7,075,320)
Decrease in other non-current assets 134,111 74,663 134,111 74,663
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (18,274,950) (50,447,588) 41,842,249  (14,852,496)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statments
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

SINGER THAILAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
In Baht

Consolidated The Company Only
2004 2003 2004 2003

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in bank overdrafts and short-term loans 7,156,913 378,320,623 7,156,913 378,370,402

from financial institutions

Payments from short-term loans from related party - - (16,383,000) (40,217,000)
Proceeds from other long-term loans 1,300,000,000 750,000,000  1,300,000,000 750,000,000
Payments of other long-term loans (525,321,000)  (460,377,000)  (525,321,000) (460,377,000)
Employee security deposits (361,304) (17,217,258) (361,304) (16,913,305)
Provident funds (7,448,841) (34,224,948) (7,448,841)  (34,224,948)
Dividends paid (134,673,430)  (114,834,151)  (134,673,430) (114,834,151)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 639,352,338 501,667,266 622,969,338 461,803,998
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26,474,123 36,292,172 25,721,614 35,966,133
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 127,516,384 91,224,212 125,302,914 89,336,781
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 153,990,507 127,516,384 151,024,428 125,302,914

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented in balance sheets 153,990,507 127,516,384 151,024,428 125,302,914
Fixed deposits at banks which have maturity dates not

over than 3 months - - - -

Total 153,990,507 127,616,384 151,024,428 125,302,914
Cash paid during period

Interest paid 44,391,884 31,354,663 44,391,884 32,662,615
Income tax paid 115,225,833 80,358,455 114,279,195 59,413,642

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statments
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2004 AND 2003 NOQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SINGER THAILAND PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Singer Thailand Public Company Limited, the “Company”, is a company registered in Thailand and listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. The registered office of the Company is at 321 Siphaya Road, Siphaya, Bangrak, Bangkok.

The principal activities of the Company are operates in retailing business under installment sales based on hire purchase
agreements of sewing machineries, electrical appliances and motorcycles.

As at December 31, 2004, The Singer (Thailand) B.V. is the major shareholder, holding 129.6 million of the Company’s
shares, representing 48% of the Company’s total authorized, issued and paid-up share capital.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht, in the Thai language in conformity with generally accepted
accounting standards in Thailand. Accordingly the financial statements are intended solely to present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Thailand.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, modified by the revaluation of land.

For the convenience of the readers, an English language translation of the financial statements has been prepared from
the Thai language financial statements which are issued for domestic reporting purposes.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for each of the years ended December 31, comprise the Company

and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”). Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:
Business Type Country of Percentage of Holding

Registration 2004 2003
Subsidiaries
Singer Industries (Thailand) Limited Manufacturing  Thailand 99.88 99.88
Singer (Broker) Limited Life insurance  Thailand 99.70 99.70
Broker
S.T.L. Electronics Company Limited Trading Thailand = 99.84

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004 do not include a subsidiary,
S.T.L. Electronics Company Limited, which is in the process of liquidation.

Significant intra-group transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company comprise the Company and its subsidiaries, (together referred to
as the “Group”).
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases.

3.2 Use of estimates

In order to prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting standards in Thailand,
management needs to make estimates and set assumptions that affect income, expenditure, assets and liabilities in order to
disclose information on the valuation of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Actual outcomes may, therefore, differ from
the estimates used.

The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
3.3 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to Thai Baht
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognized in the
statement of income.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Revalued assets

Revaluations are performed by independent professional valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount of these assets does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet
date.

Any increase in value, on revaluation, is credited to the revaluation reserve unless it offsets a previous decrease in value
recognized in the income statement. A decrease in value is recognized in the income statement to the extent it exceeds an
increase previously recognized in the revaluation reserve. Upon disposal, any related revaluation surplus is transferred directly
from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to the carrying amount of the
asset when it is probable that the future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the
existing asset will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure is recognized as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part

of an item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvement 5 years
Office furniture and equipment 5 years

No depreciation is provided on construction in progress and software programme under installation.
3.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
Amortization

Amortization is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software license 5 years

3.6 Prepaid rent

Prepaid rent is amortized over the rental periods on the straight-line method.
3.7 Investments
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for using the equity
method.
Investments in other debt and equity securities

Debt securities that the Group intends and is able to hold to maturity are stated at amortized cost less impairment losses.
The difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value of such debt securities is amortized using the effective
interest rate method over the period to maturity.
3.8 Installments and Others Receivable

Installments and others receivable are stated at their invoice value less allowance for doubtful accounts.

Installments and others receivable are classified as current assets regardless of when payments are due. Receivables are
effectively secured by the products sold.

genuLlszantl 2547
13N dunaddszinalng 91in @man)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is made to cover the estimated loss that may incur in collection of the receivables by
analyzing the age of accounts receivable and applying predetermined percentage rates. The allowance for doubtful accounts
has been calculated as follows: overdue receivables from 4 to 6 month-periods at the rate of 30%, overdue receivables from 6
to 9 month-periods at the rate of 45%, overdue receivables from 9 to 12 month-periods at the rate of 65% and overdue
receivables over 12 month periods at the rate of 100%.

The Company’s management believes that the allowance for doubtful accounts is sufficient since most installment
debtors have been subject to reviews and approval by the credit function of the Company and are closely monitored by the
Company’s management to ensure that these debtors are able to pay their debts as and when they fall due. In addition, based
on the Company’s statistic data, defaults on collections are lower than the allowance made for doubtful accounts and bad
debts written off are also lower than the allowance for doubtful accounts.

3.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is calculated using the first in first out formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

An allowance is made for all deteriorated, damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories.

3.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid short-term investments. Bank over-
drafts that are repayable on demand are a component of financing activities for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
3.11 Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than inventories are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

3.12 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Retirement Costs

A defined retirement plan is provided for the employees. Provision for retirement costs is calculated based on the Group’s
retirement rate, employees’ estimated future salary at retirement date, rates of employee turnover and the discount rate based
on the average of the Group’s return on assets for the past five years.

Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision is based on
historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities.
3.13 Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables (including balances with related parties) are stated at cost.

3.14 Revenue
Revenue excludes value added taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Revenue (Continued)

Sales comprise cash sales, credit sales and installment sales. Cash sales and credit sales are recognized when products
are delivered. Installment sales represent sales under hire-purchase contracts whereby the related debts are secured by the
products sold are effectively. Revenue from installment sales comprises sales of product and interest. The interest on
installment sales is calculated on customary financing terms. Sales of product and gross profit are recognized when contracts
are signed and first payments are received. Interest is recorded in unearned carrying charges and recognized as earned by
using “the sum-of-the months’ digits method”.

The financial statements for each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company ceases to recognize the earmned
carrying charges for receivables for which 3 payments and 6 payments in total have been defaulted during the period, respectively.
Other income

Interest income is recognized in the income statement as it accrues.

3.15 Expenses
Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the statement of income on a straight line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized in the statement of income as an integral part of the total lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to the statement of income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
Other expenses

Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to the statement of income in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to be prepared for its intended use or sale.

3.16 Income tax

Income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
3.17 Basic earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit for the year by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year.

4. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties are those parties linked to companies in the Group by common shareholders or directors. Transactions with
related parties are conducted at prices based on market prices or at contractually agreed prices where no market prices exist. Significant
balances at each balance sheet date, and transactions for the financial years then ended, with related parties are as follows:

4.1 Transactions with related parties for each of the years ended December 31, consisted of:
In Baht

Consolidated The Company Only

A 2004 2003 000 2003

Interest Income

Subsidiaries = - = 830,015
Management Fee Income

Subsidiaries = - 446,724 518,841
Purchase of Goods

Subsidiaries = - 3,426,947 100,067
Other related parties 87,782,435 30,605,807 87,782,435 30,605,807
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Subsidiaries = - = 24,399,906
Interest Expense

Subsidiaries - - 993,588 2,670,005
Trademark License Fee

Major shareholder 2,825,696 3,595,484 2,825,696 3,695,484
Offshore Service Fee

Major shareholder 45,261,586 45,425,345 45,261,586 45,425,345
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
4.2 Significant balances with related parties as at December 31, consisted of:
In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only

I o ms o

Amount due from related parties

Subsidiaries = - 30,737 -

Other related parties 3,232,875 4,535,181 3,232,875 4,535,181
Total Amount due from related parties 3,232,875 4,535,181 3,263,612 4,535,181
Prepayment for inventories

Other related party 5,055,465 - 5,055,465 -

Total Prepayment for inventories 5,065,465 - 5,055,465 -

Trade Accounts Payable

(From part of trade accounts

payable in the balance sheets)

Other related party 5,134,414 3,021,555 5,134,414 3,021,555
Total Trade Accounts Payable 5,134,414 3,021,555 5,134,414 3,021,555

Amount due to related parties

Subsidiaries = - 1,674,161 44,049,208
Major shareholder 43,045,971 23,431,175 43,045,971 23,431,175
Total Amount due to related parties 43,045,971 23,431,175 44,720,132 67,480,383

Short-term Loans
(interest rate 4 - 5% per annum)

Subsidiary:

S. T. L. Electronics Company Limited.

(99.84% of share capital) - - - 18,900,000
Total Short-term Loans = - = 18,900,000

Short-term Borrowings
(interest rate 4 % per annum)

Subsidiary:

Singer Industries (thailand) Limited.

(99.88% of share capital) - - 7,000,000 23,383,000
Total Short-term Borrowings = - 7,000,000 23,383,000

Commitments according to agreement with related parties:

The Company entered into a trademark license agreement with its former major shareholder, The Singer Company B.V.
The Company agrees to pay a trademark license fee at the rate of 0.1% of total net sales under the Singer Brand products.

The Company entered into an offshore service agreement with its former major shareholder, The Singer Company B.V.
Under the terms of agreement, the Company will receive information relating to marketing, product planning, design development
and others in return for which it agrees to pay offshore service fee at the rate of 1% of total net sales.

As at July 23, 2003, The Singer Company B.V. assigned and transferred the payment for the trademark license fee and
offshore service to an overseas subsidiary of the former major shareholder, Singer Asia Limited, effective since July 29, 2003.
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5. INSTALLMENTS AND OTHERS RECEIVABLE - NET
Installments and others receivable as at December 31, consisted of:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
e 004 2003 2004 2003
Installments and others receivable 5,959,251,026 4,920,922,874 5,958,764,259  4,919,542,613
Less Unearned carrying charges (1,511,418469)  (1,154,372,669)  (1,5611,418469)  (1,154,372,569)
Total 4,447,832,557 3,766,550,305 4,447,345790  3,765,170,044
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (617,269,991) (523,120,560) (617,269,991) (522,956,560)
Total Installments and Others Receivable - Net 3,830,562,566 3,243,429,745 3,830,075,799  3,242,213,484

The outstanding balances of installments receivable aged by number of months as at December 31, consisted of:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
N 200+ 2003 2006 2003
Less than 3 months 3,364,669,966  2,950,377,341  3,364,173,199  2,949,162,129
Over 3 months up to 6 months 298,071,208 145,042,392 298,071,208 145,042,392
Over 6 months up to 12 months 197,056,024 88,140,584 197,056,024 88,140,584
Over 12 months 75,084,436 47,480,774 75,084,436 47,315,725
Total 3934,871,634  3,231,041,091  3,934,384,867  3,229,660,830
Restructured debt 43,258,913 43,458,913 43,258,913 43,458,913
Total 3978,130,647  3,274,500,004  3977,643,780  3,273,119,743
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (233,170,000) (148,304,000) (233,170,000)  (148,140,000)
Total Installments Receivable - Net 3,744,960,5647  3,126,196,004  3,744,473,780  3,124,979,743

The outstanding balances of others receivable as at December 31, consisted of:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
e o004 2003 2004 2003
Others receivable 142,531,807 144,465,234 142,531,807 144,465,234
Receivable from employees 327,170,203 347,585,067 327,170,203 347,585,067
Total 469,702,010 492,050,301 469,702,010 492,050,301
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (384,099,991) (374,816,560) (384,099,991)  (374,816,560)
Total Others Receivable 85,602,019 117,233,741 85,602,019 117,233,741

6. INVENTORIES - NET
Inventories as at December 31, are as follows:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only

A 2004 2003 2004 2008

Supplies and tools - 1,776,836

Component parts 49,532,045 52,308,844 49,532,045 48,348,080

Finished goods 738,940,487 407,254,020 738,940,487 407,592,529

Total 788,472,532 461,339,700 788,472,532 455,940,609

Less Allowance for obsolete and damage inventories (84,000,000) (53,500,000) (84,000,000) (48,000,000)

Total Inventories - Net 704,472,532 407,839,700 704,472,532 407,940,609
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7. INVESTMENTS RECORDED BY THE EQUITY METHOD

Investments recorded by the equity method comprise investments in shares of subsidiaries in the Company’s financial
statements.

Investments recorded by the equity method in the Company’s financial statements as at December 31, 2004, consisted of:

In Baht
Paid-up

Type of Relationship Capital % Share At Cost At Equity Dividends

Business (Baht) Holding Method Method
Subsidiaries
Singer Industries Manufacturing Subsidiary 5,000,000 99.88 4,994,000 8,174,859 77,407,000
(Thailand) Limited
Singer (Broker) Limited Life insurance Subsidiary 200,000 99.70 199,400 2,711,457 57,327,500

Broker
Total 5,193,400 10,886,316 134,734,500

Investments recorded by the equity method in the Company’s financial statements as at December 31, 2003, consisted of:

In Baht
Paid-up

Type of Relationship Capital At Cost At Equity  Dividends

Business (Baht) Method Method
Subsidiaries
Singer Industries Manufacturing Subsidiary 5,000,000 99.88 4,994,000 18,378,011 59,928,000
(Thailand) Limited
Singer (Broker) Limited Life insurance Subsidiary 200,000 99.70 199,400 43,432,956 13,958,000

Broker

S.T.L. Electronics Co., Ltd. Trading Subsidiary 5,000,000 99.84 4,992,000 - =
Total 10,185,400 61,810,967 73,886,000

A subsidiary, S.T.L. Electronics Co., Ltd. is in the process of liquidation. Accordingly, the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2004 do not record this investment by the equity method.

8. OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
Other long-term investment as at December 31, consisted of:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
Maturity Debt Security
TISCO Finance PCL. 1,000,000 1,000,000 - -
Total Other Long-Term Investment 1,000,000 1,000,000 - -
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET
Movements of Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended December 31, 2004:

In Baht

Begining Addition / Transfer in /

Balance Depreciation Disposal (out) Ending Balance
Cost
Land and land improvement 191,448,552 - (29,527,370) - 161,921,182
Surplus on revaluation 127,705,768 - (36,264,450) - 91,441,318
Total Land 319,164,320 - (65,791,820) - 253,362,500
and land improvement
Buildings 272,040,666 - (10,227,486) - 261,813,180
Leasehold improvements 151,506,394 2,956,230 (23,785,604) 6,868,738 137,545,758
Office furniture 141,436,109 7,699,187 (35,937,949) 9,332,235 122,529,582
and equipment
Construction in progress - 12,671,836 - (6,868,738) 5,803,098
Software programme = 23,118,272 - (9,332,235) 13,786,037
under installation
Total 884,137,489 46,445,626 (135,742,859) - 794,840,155
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings 141,406,799 13,096,362 (15,422,557) - 139,080,604
Leasehold improvements 81,493,192 22,186,107 (15,858,863) - 87,820,436
Office furniture 117,496,404 10,656,948 (35,620,081) - 92,633,271
and equipment
Total 340,396,395 45,939,417 (66,901,501) - 319,434,311
Net Book Value
Land and land improvement 319,154,320 - - - 253,362,500
Buildings 130,633,867 - - - 122,732,576
Leasehold improvements 70,013,202 - - - 49,725,322
Office furniture 23,939,705 . - - 29,996,311
and equipment
Construction in progress - - - - 5,803,098
Software programme - - - - 13,786,037
under installation
Total 543,741,094 - - - 475,405,844

Depreciation charges of Baht 45.94 million and Baht 45.67 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively, were included in the selling and administrative expenses.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the acquisition cost of fully depreciated plant and equipment still in use amounted
to Baht 110.28 million and Baht 74.80 million, respectively.
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET (Continued)
Movements of Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended December 31, 2004: (Continued)

In Baht

Begining Addition / Transfer in /

Balance Depreciation Disposal (out) Ending Balance
Cost
Land and land improvement 191,448,552 - (29,527,370) - 161,921,182
Surplus on revaluation 127,705,768 - (36,264,450) - 91,441,318
Total Land 319,164,320 - (65,791,820) - 253,362,500
and land improvement
Buildings 262,513,180 - (700,000) - 261,813,180
Leasehold improvements 151,068,056 2,956,230 (23,347,266) 6,868,738 137,545,758
Office furniture 124,691,051 7,699,187 (19,192,891) 9,332,235 122,529,582
and equipment
Construction in progress = 12,671,836 - (6,868,738) 5,803,098
Software programme = 23,118,272 = (9,332,235) 13,786,037
under installation
Total 857,426,607 46,445,525 (109,031,977) - 794,840,155
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings 126,552,939 13,096,362 (568,697) - 139,080,604
Leasehold improvements 81,054,853 22,186,107 (15,420,524) - 87,820,436
Office furniture 100,811,280 10,661,925 (18,829,934) - 92,633,271
and equipment
Total 308,419,072 45,834,384 (34,819,155) - 319,434,311
Net Book Value
Land and land improvement 319,154,320 - - - 253,362,500
Buildings 135,960,241 - - - 122,732,576
Leasehold improvements 70,013,203 - - - 49,725,322
Office furniture 23,879,771 - - - 29,996,311
and equipment
Construction in progress - - - - 5,803,098
Software programme = - - - 13,786,037
under installation
Total 549,007,535 - 2 - 475,405,844

Depreciation charges of Baht 45.83 million and Baht 44.68 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively, were included in the selling and administrative expenses.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the acquisition cost of fully depreciated plant and equipment still in use amounted
to Baht 110.28 million and Baht 74.80 million, respectively.
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10. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions as at December 31, consisted of:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
e 00e 20 2004 2003
Bank Overdrafts 22,369,222 10,212,309 22,369,222 10,212,309
Short-term loans from financial institutions 495,000,000 500,000,000 495,000,000 500,000,000
Total Bank Overdraft and Short-Term Loans 517,369,222 510,212,309 517,369,222 510,212,309
from Financial Institutions

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions are unsecured liabilities.

11. OTHER LONG-TERM LOANS - NET
Other long-term loans as at December 31, consisted of:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
Loans from financial institutions 1,624,670,000 749,991,000  1,524,670,000 749,991,000
Bill of Exchange 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000
Total 1,624,670,000 849,991,000  1,624,670,000 849,991,000
Less Current Portion of Long-term Loans (723,818,184) (383,641,000) (723,818,184)  (383,641,000)
Total Other Long-Term Loans - Net 900,851,816 466,350,000 900,851,816 466,350,000

Other long-term loans consisted of:

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, loans from financial institutions in amount of Baht 1,525 million and Baht 750 million,
respectively, with interest from 2.80% to 3.756% per annum. The terms of repayment of the loans are from 1 year to 3 years.

As at December 31, 2004, bill of exchange in the amount of Baht 100 million with interest at 2.87% per annum is due
on June 24, 2005.
12. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses as at December 31, consisted of:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
Accrued advertising and sales promotion 58,643,780 74,841,167 58,643,780 74,831,167
Accrued commission 20,179,937 16,986,597 20,179,937 16,873,275
Provision for sales return - 8,505,100 - 8,505,100
Interest payable 3,937,895 5,342,020 3,937,895 5,342,020
Dividend payable 1,592,419 1,265,849 1,592,419 1,265,849
Other 55,765,212 61,176,824 55,619,114 60,782,926
Total Accrued Expenses 140,119,243 168,117,557 139,973,145 167,600,337

13. PROVIDENT FUNDS

There are two provident funds currently operated by the Group:

e A fund managed by an approved fund manager was set up in accordance with the Superannuation Fund Act 1987
with effect from June 1990. The fund’s assets are separated from the Company’s assets and operated by a registered fund
manager. This fund operates for the benefit of salaried employees.

e An unfunded provident fund for the benefit of employees whose income is substantially in the form of commissions.
14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration represents fees paid to attend directors meeting and gratuities and benefits as approved by
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.
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14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ remuneration of Baht 1.35 million and Baht 0.88 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and
20083, respectively, were included in the selling and administrative expenses.
15. PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Consolidated

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Group had 8,149 employees and 8,069 employees, respectively. The personnel
expenses for each of the years then ended were Baht 794.50 million and Baht 855.39 million, respectively, which were included
in selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income.
The Company

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had 8,149 employees and 8,069 employees, respectively. The personnel
expenses for each of the years then ended were Baht 792.60 million and Baht 852.94 million, respectively, which were included
in selling and administrative expenses in the statements of income.
16. DIVIDENDS

At the Board of Director Meetings held on August 11, 2004, it was unanimously resolved that interim dividend of Baht
0.16 per share should be paid from the Company’s profit of the first six-month period for the year 2004, totalling Baht 43.20
million.

At the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 23, 2004, it was unanimously resolved that the final
dividend of Baht 3.40 per share should be paid from the net operating for the year 2003, totalling Baht 91.80 million.

At the Board of Director Meetings held on August 21, 2003, it was unanimously resolved that interim dividend of Baht
1.60 per share, should be paid from the Company’s profit of the first six-month period for the year 2003, totalling Baht 43.20
million.

At the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 23, 2003, it was unanimously resolved that the final
dividend of Baht 2.70 per share should be paid from the net operating for the year 2002, totalling Baht 72.90 million.
17. SHARE CAPITAL AND BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

At the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 23, 2004, it was unanimously resolved that the par value
of the Company’s common shares should be split from Baht 10 to Baht 1. The change of par value was registered with the
Ministry of Commerce on May 10, 2004.

The Company recalculated earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2003 for the purpose of comparison with
the current year ended December 31, 2004 to adjust for the effect of the above share split.
18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The information for financial instruments is as follows:
Currency Risk

The Company purchases certain imported finished goods for domestic sales, transacted in foreign currencies which are
mostly based on the US Dollar currency for transaction deal. As at December 31, 2004, the Company has no forward contract
that may be affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate.

The accounting policy applied by the Company is disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.
Interest Rate Risk

As at December 31, 2004, the Company had interest commitments on the debt payable to local commercial banks
amounting to Baht 2,142.04 million. The amount consists of bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions
and long term loan from local commercial banks with interest at the average rate of 1.40% - 6.756% per annum. Possible risks
may arise from adjustments to the interest rates of local commercial banks. However, under the present circumstances, the
interest rates do not materially affect the business.
Credit Risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The products are sold under hire purchase
agreements and the installment accounts receivable are secured as collateral by the products sold. At the balance sheet date
there was no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
The accounting policy applied by the Company is disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.
Trade accounts receivable aging schedule is disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the financial instruments is the amount at which the instrument may be exchanged in a current
transaction between the willing parties. The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate a fair value of each class
of the Company’s financial instruments for which it is practical to estimate that value:

elinancial assets are shown at estimated fair value.

elinancial liabilities - the book value approximates fair value, due to such liabilities will mature in the short-term.
19. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group operates a single trading business in a single geographical area; therefore there is no presentation of financial
information by segment.
20. OBLIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Group has commitment and contingent liabilities as follows:

The Group has operating lease commitments as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 payable as follows:

In Baht
Consolidated The Company Only
Within 1 year 27,915,474 29,217,783 27,915,474 29,217,783
More than 1 year 34,254,361 43,099,935 34,254,361 43,099,935
Total 62,169,835 72,317,718 62,169,835 72,317,718

21. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain accounts in the 2003 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the 2004 financial statements
presentation.
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